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There’s no fancy footwork:

just solid, ethical 

business practices.

OUR SUCCESS HINGES ON OUR ABILITY TO TAKE A STAND 

AND DO WHAT’S RIGHT FOR OUR 

MEMBERS, OUR EMPLOYEES, OUR COMMUNITY AND OUR ENVIRONMENT.
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Envision has written a remarkable growth story by staying true to its credit union 

values. And that story continues with a new chapter as we begin a new fi scal year. 

From small beginnings in the homes of local fi shermen and farmers more than 

60 years ago, Envision began 2010 as a division of First West Credit Union: a newly 

formed British Columbia–wide fi nancial cooperative serving 167,000 members. 

I thank the members of Envision and Valley First credit unions for approving the 

merger that established First West. As First West begins to write its story, it holds the 

promise of greatness with a truly innovative new way of delivering fi nancial services 

in Western Canada. 

STAYING TRUE TO OUR VALUES 

First West offi  cially opened for business on January 1, 2010, with 1,250 employees, 

$5.1 billion in assets, 37 branches and 29 insurance offi  ces. It is B.C.’s third-largest 

credit union. 

But First West isn’t the result of a traditional business combination where the 

merged parties lose their identities. Its founding credit unions, Envision and 

Valley First, operate as divisions of First West, retaining their local identities, local 

focus and local decision-making abilities. The overall strategic direction of First West 

comes from a new executive team and Board of Directors. 

This unique structure will help to ensure that the expanded organization of which 

we are a part remains rooted in meeting the locally-specifi c needs of our members, 

our employees and our communities even as it grows.

BUILDING A NEW VALUESDRIVEN ORGANIZATION

The First West Board is comprised of the former directors of Envision and Valley First. 

Its current priority is to help the two Envision and Valley First divisions make the 

transition to the single First West operating structure. The objective is to maintain the 

highest standards in governance and social, economic and environmental performance. 

The Board initiated the merger-transition process in 2009 by reviewing the 

governance practices of the founding credit unions to establish new governance 

guidelines for First West. It also adopted best practices recommended by an 

independent advisor. These practices include the involvement of a committee 

of member representatives that will review and recommend remuneration for 

First West’s directors.

WRITING A NEW CHAPTER IN THE ENVISION STORY

TERRY ENNS

Board Chair



03

E
N

V
IS

IO
N

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
0

9

Numerous merger-transition activities are planned for 2010 that will bring Envision 

and Valley First together operationally and culturally. These include unifying our 

systems, integrating the internal controls and risk management processes, and 

harmonizing the human resources practices of the two founding entities.

In addition, the Board will oversee the development of a long-term strategic plan. 

The Board has established regional councils for its Envision and Valley First 

divisions, too. The councils will help to maintain the connection between the 

original credit unions and their members, sustaining the dynamic that made 

those organizations catalysts for positive change in their communities.

Envision has grown, thrived and evolved by delivering innovative fi nancial services 

with compassion and excellence to consumers seeking to build a relationship with 

an organization that understands them—a fi nancial institution they value and trust. 

First West’s larger capital base will enable us to sustain our focus on excellence in 

personal service. The synergies and economies of scale that we will realize from 

operating as a larger organization will also help Envision and First West maintain 

competitiveness in a rapidly changing and more connected world.

The Board, meanwhile, remains committed to the Pathways Project with 

First Calgary Savings. This partnership has evolved considerably since its 

formation in 2006. Pathways has achieved operational status that features 

a centrally led technology company. First West plans ultimately to build an 

interprovincial network of credit unions drawn together by similar values 

and vision. Enabling legislation, however, is still required before First West 

can merge with First Calgary Savings. 

THANKING THREE VISIONARIES 

A casual conversation between two golfi ng buddies, Envision CEO Gord Huston 

and the then president and CEO of First Calgary Savings Dave Gregory, led to the 

formation of Pathways, a groundbreaking inter-provincial partnership. When a third 

friend, Harley Biddlecombe, then the president and CEO of Valley First Credit Union, 

joined the conversation, he brought new perspectives on how credit unions could 

be diff erent—and better. These visionary discussions gave rise to the ideas and 

concepts that are today embodied in First West.

Dave Gregory retired in October 2009 after 18 years with First Calgary Savings. 

I thank him for his vision and initiative in helping to write a new chapter in the 

evolution of the Canadian credit union system. I likewise thank Harley Biddlecombe 
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for his vision. Sadly, Harley passed away in October 2009. For all of the 31 years that 

he guided Valley First, he loved his job and the people he worked with. I know that 

he would have cherished seeing his long-term vision of First West become a reality. 

We continue to benefi t from the leadership of Gord Huston, serving now as CEO of 

First West. He, too, has my gratitude for his tremendous contributions to Pathways 

and to our organization.

LOOKING AHEAD

Much has changed in the course of just one year. Envision is part of a larger and 

stronger organization, and, though risks remain, the outlook for economic growth is 

positive once again. The goals of Envision and First West, however, are unchanged: 

to pursue authenticity, reliability, and excellence as we meet the needs of our 

members and continue to build healthy, strong communities.

I thank our members for their continued support and confi dence. I also thank our 

employees for their hard work and dedication during an especially challenging yet 

rewarding year. Finally, I thank my fellow Board members for their support as we 

look ahead in anticipation of great things to come for Envision Financial and for 

First West Credit Union.

Sincerely, 

TERRY ENNS

Board Chair
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message from the president and CEO

GORD HUSTON

President and CEO

STANDING BY OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

The strong relationships Envision builds with its members usually begin with 

a conversation. I’d prefer to deliver my annual message to you the same way.

I’ll start by saying that in early 2009, you and I faced considerable uncertainty. 

A global recession was looming and a fi nancial crisis threatened the international 

banking system. Indeed, in last year’s message I said uncertainty seemed to have 

become the only certainty. I was, however, confi dent of this: the Canadian banking 

system was stable, our organization was fi nancially sound and we could survive 

an unusually challenging period with discipline and sacrifi ce. 

Twelve months later, I’m happy to say that things turned out much as I expected. 

Envision realized more than satisfactory earnings in 2009 by focusing on 

operational eff ectiveness. We also made sacrifi ces, not the least of which was 

asking members to absorb increased borrowing costs. Today, the operating 

environment is much improved, and although concerns remain, we are in 

a strong position fi nancially and strategically to pursue sustainable growth.

EMBARKING ON A NEW ERA 

The highlight of the year? That’s easy. Your approval of the merger of Envision and 

Valley First to establish First West Credit Union was especially gratifying for me. 

It was the culmination of several years of work and it opens an exciting new era 

for us. My only regret is that Harley Biddlecombe, the former President and CEO 

of Valley First Savings, passed away suddenly just days after our members voted 

in favour of the merger.

Currently, a transition team is implementing and fi ne tuning First West’s 

unique operating model. Envision will continue to operate under a First West 

support structure that combines fi nancial assets and administrative functions. 

This will enable Envision to remain a dominant brand and competitor in its 

local markets while enjoying the operating effi  ciencies and economies of scale 

of a larger organization. 

The transition team has its work cut out for it in 2010. It will be dealing with a 

multitude of merger-related activities while sharpening First West’s focus on 

growing its business in local markets.

IMPROVING OUR BOTTOM LINE WITH DIVERSIFIED OPERATIONS 

The toughest decision of 2009? Without a doubt it was asking you to absorb 

higher borrowing costs on mortgages, loans and lines of credit. 



Like most businesses, we experienced cost pressures and challenging market 

conditions in 2009. What began as a fi nancial market crisis mushroomed into 

a full-blown global recession in 2009. British Columbia experienced its deepest 

recession since 1982. 

Nonetheless, at Envision we raised interest rates only after absorbing as much 

extra credit cost as possible and only after making every eff ort to reduce our 

operating costs. We subsequently followed through on our promise to re-evaluate 

our lending rates and lower those rates when the environment improved. 

Accordingly, we lowered rates as fi nancial markets and overall economic 

conditions improved by year-end. 

I also asked our management team to focus on Envision’s operational eff ectiveness 

in 2009. They responded with astute treasury management strategies to control 

interest rate risks and other initiatives to contain operating costs. 

I am especially pleased with the performance of our insurance services, wealth 

management and automotive fi nancing businesses in diversifying our revenue 

sources. These business units are helping us provide an ever-broader broad 

range of fi nancial services and are making increasingly signifi cant contributions 

to our bottom line. This was especially helpful during 2009, when our core 

banking operations were challenged by lower fi nancial margins and diffi  cult 

operating conditions. 

Our non-interest income increased $5.5 million, or 8.2%, to $72.5 million in 2009. 

Net income was $22.0 million, an increase of 88.9% from 2008. We enjoyed strong 

deposit growth, which increased $127.1 million, or 4.7%, in 2009. And loans to 

members increased in 2009 to $91.6 million, or 3.4%.

STEPPING UP IN A TIME OF NEED 

You and I both recognize how easy it is for our lives to begin slipping out of balance 

in the face of competing priorities. I was well aware, however, that Envision wasn’t 

alone in the economic challenges it faced in 2009. As such, I knew that we couldn’t 

lose sight of our commitment to the communities where we live and work. 

So rather than step back, we stepped up—with a special emphasis on addressing 

hunger and meeting food needs in our local communities. Envision was proud 

to contribute fi nancially to causes like these, and our employees even contributed 

their time by volunteering with either our Days of Caring Program or our 

Employee Giving Campaign to sustain our commitment to our community 

partners when they needed it most. 
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message from the president and CEO (continued)
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THANKING MY COLLEAGUES

The commitment and passion of Envision’s employees is something that I’m extremely 

proud of. Envision has worked hard to provide employees with the environment 

and the fl exibility to pursue what is important to them. It is gratifying to learn that 

our employees acknowledged that eff ort for the eighth consecutive year by again, 

in 2009, recognizing Envision as one of the 50 Best Employers in Canada. 

While I’m on the topic of good management, I want to thank two long-serving 

colleagues who retired in 2009. Rudy Wiebe retired after 36 years with our credit union. 

For most of these years, Rudy ran our treasury department and played a crucial role 

in our success. Tim Wasilieff , a long-standing member of our executive team, was 

instrumental in the merger of Delta and First Heritage Savings credit unions in 2001. 

He later helped to form and served as the CEO of inUnison Technology Services, 

the subsidiary that developed and operates our state-of-the-art information 

technology systems. We are a stronger and better organization because of these 

leaders and I wish them happy and well-deserved retirements.

MOVING AHEAD WITH RENEWED CONFIDENCE 

My outlook for the year ahead is much improved from a year ago, and hopefully 

yours is too. Canada’s fi nancial regulations proved their worth in 2009, enabling 

Envision and other Canadian fi nancial institutions to come through unprecedented 

fi nancial turmoil and an economic slowdown in good shape. Envision’s goal in 2010 

is to use its fi nancial resources to help grow First West prudently, especially during 

the early stages of British Columbia’s economic recovery, as uncertainly remains. 

I continued to serve as the interim CEO of First West through the fi rst months 

of the merger-transition period in 2010. With that period now completed and 

permanent CEO Launi Skinner having been hired, I’ll begin my own transition—

to retirement. I’m looking forward to spending more time with my grandchildren 

and to fi nding my golf game. I can’t thank the Board and my colleagues enough 

for the experiences I’ve enjoyed over the past 13 years. They have been both 

wonderful and humbling.

And that brings us to the end of our conversation. Before I wrap up, let me thank 

you for your trust. Ultimately, that’s all we really have to off er each other. We at 

Envision are grateful to have earned yours and believe that Envision and First West 

will continue to earn it by creating a better future for you, our employees and the 

communities we serve.

Sincerely, 

GORD HUSTON

President and CEO



   

governance report
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Our governance practices guide how the Board of Directors functions, makes decisions, 

and holds itself accountable. The Board of Directors oversees Envision Financial’s 

operations, ensuring that the credit union remains prosperous and progressive.

In 2009, the Board concentrated on Envision’s proposed merger with Valley First 

Credit Union and worked to ensure that Envision’s members were given a central 

role in the decision-making process. The Board oversaw a member vote in June 

where an overwhelming majority of Envision members (90.3% of Class A shareholders 

and 84.9% of Class B shareholders) voted in favour of merging with Valley First 

to form First West Credit Union. After working to gain regulatory approval for the 

merger, the Board created a set of governance policies and structures to ensure 

an orderly transition during the merger.

The Board also:

• Supported the fi nancial services portion of TILMA (Trade, Investment, Labour  

 and Mobility Agreement) as part of Envision’s ongoing eff orts to modernize the  

 provincial legislation under which credit unions operate. When passed, the new  

 legislation will enable Envision to partner more closely with First Calgary Savings. 

• Reviewed controls and procedures of the credit union’s operations to ensure  

 prudent and effi  cient operations. 

• Led a CEO succession process for First West that involved the participation of  

 First Calgary Savings and Valley First Credit Union. 

• Continued to direct management to increase their focus on risk management.  

• Directed management to strengthen Envision’s business continuity plans and to  

 ensure that an eff ective pandemic plan was in place to deal with H1N1 concerns.

• Directed management to ensure plans were in place to protect Envision from the  

 eff ects of the global fi nancial crisis.

BOARD STRUCTURE

The Board comprises 12 directors, each elected by a ballot cast by the members 

of the credit union. Each director is expected to exercise independent judgment 

with honesty and integrity while adhering to credit union policies and procedures, 

and statutory and regulatory requirements. Additionally, each director must be 

independent from and unrelated to the credit union and the fi nancial services 

industry in general. The directors must not have an interest or relationship with 

the credit union that could be seen to interfere with their ability to act in the best 

interests of the credit union and its members. The Conduct Review Committee 

of the Board regularly reviews compliance with this requirement. 

GOVERNANCE FORMS THE FRAMEWORK OF ACCOUNTABILITY TO OUR MEMBERS, 

STAKEHOLDERS, AND THE COMMUNITIES IN WHICH ENVISION OPERATES
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In preparation for Envision’s merger with Valley First, the Envision Board committed 

to downsizing from twelve to nine director seats by the date of the 2011 Annual 

General Meeting. This was to ensure that the new First West Board would have equal 

numbers of director seats originating from the two original credit unions—nine from 

Valley First and nine from Envision. Accordingly, two Envision directors, Sally O’Sullivan 

and Chuck Stam, volunteered to step down in December of 2009. Sally O’Sullivan 

had served as a director on Envision’s Board for twelve years and had chaired the 

Envision Foundation Board for nine of those years. During her tenure the Foundation 

endowment more than quadrupled in size and is now greater than $5 million. 

Chuck Stam contributed signifi cantly following his election to the Envision Board 

in 2007, particularly to the governance work involved in the merger. The remaining 

directors thank Sally and Chuck for their selfl ess decisions to step down, expressing 

heartfelt gratitude to both for their vital contributions and dedicated service.

GOVERNANCE STANDARDS

The Board measures governance practices against standards issued by the Canadian 

Coalition for Good Governance. The coalition is a not-for-profi t corporation whose 

mission is the promotion of corporate governance practices that best align the 

interests of boards and management with those of the shareholder. While the 

Envision Board is not required to meet these standards, it uses them as a guideline 

to ensure transparency and accountability to members. To ensure the highest 

standards of governance are observed, the Board focuses on three areas of best 

practices: individual directors, board structure and board processes. Our Board 

is committed to the pursuit of outstanding performance in governance.

DECISION MAKING BY THE BOARD

The Board requires management to develop and present recommendations 

for signifi cant initiatives, including alternatives, with detailed analysis 

on each. This is followed by a rigorous and constructive debate between the 

Board and management, and concludes with a vote on the best way to proceed. 

Directors may hire outside advisors, subject to the approval of the Chair, 

if they want advice independent of management. The Board is required 

to approve decisions that meet the following thresholds:

• requires a capital expenditure of $2.5 million or more

• signifi cantly impacts the membership

• signifi cantly impacts Envision’s reputation or values

Finally, the Board endeavours to operate in a transparent manner by being 

accessible to the membership and reporting on its activities. This transparency 

can be seen in such areas as this annual report, the credit union’s website, 

communication contained in the product envelopes, in-branch visits on selected 

dates and the Annual General Meeting. The Board encourages all Envision members 

to participate fully in the democratic process. 
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board of directors

SHAWN NEUMANN

Secretary

KEN VOTH

Vice Chair

TERRY ENNS

Board Chair

SALLY O’SULLIVANCHUCK STAMPETER PODOVINIKOFF

DAVID LETKEMANNPETER SCHERLE MYRNA WEBSTER

HENRY JANSENLOIS WILKINSONDON MURRAY



 

11

E
N

V
IS

IO
N

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
0

9

executive management team

GORD HUSTON

President and CEO

MARK McLOUGHLIN

Vice-President, 

Pathways and 

Corporate Development

JACKIE BARBER

Senior Vice-President,

Human Resources

JOHN DUNDAS

Senior Vice-President, 

Marketing and 

Communications

BARRY DELANEY

Senior Vice-President,

Corporate Secretary and 

Risk Services

BEV BROWN

Chief Operating Officer 

and CEO, inUnision 

Technology Services

TOM WEBSTER

Chief Financial Officer



Committed to

making a diff erence.
PARTNERING WITH COMMUNITY INITIATIVES.



community and society

Hunger knows no age. No one understands this sad fact more than the volunteers 

and staff  at the Surrey Food Bank. Every month they pack and distribute hampers 

for 15,000 clients, more than 6,000 of whom are children.

With local food banks witnessing a 15% increase in food neediness in 2009—a year 

fi lled with economic challenges—Envision Financial set out to make food accessibility 

a priority in its giving initiatives.

“When there are thousands of children and adults in our community who don’t 

have access to healthy food, we have a responsibility to help,” explains Janice 

Iverson, Envision’s assistant vice-president of corporate citizenship. “That’s why 

food was a focus for Envision this year—whether we were packing it, preparing it 

or just raising awareness about it, we wanted to do whatever we could to help.” 

Envision’s “Let’s Can Hunger” giving campaign raised more than $20,000 for local 

food banks plus an additional $28,000 for other service agencies including the 

United Way. Envision also partnered with the Surrey Food Bank to develop, design 

and print a number of informational brochures about the food bank—a critical 

means of raising funds and awareness. 

Envision’s staff  also provided the Surrey Food Bank with another much-needed 

resource: human-power. “To have Envision employees become part of our family 

for a day—it really opens their eyes to what we do here and the people who rely 

on our services,” explains Executive Director Marilyn Herrmann. In turn, these 

volunteers then become ambassadors for the food bank within the community.

Envision couldn’t have been more proud when the Surrey Food Bank named 

Envision its 2009 Outstanding Corporate Donor. 

“It’s so easy for organizations to just drop a cheque in the mail, but for a company 

to send us a cheque and then say, ‘What else can we do to help?’—that’s the kind 

of support the Surrey Food Bank receives from Envision,” says Marilyn. “It means 

everything to us—really, it’s what enables us to exist.”

ENVISION TACKLES HUNGER PROBLEMS WITH THE SURREY FOOD BANK
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MARILYN 

HERRMANN

Executive Director 

Surrey Food Bank



community and society (continued)
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CHARITABLE GIVING IN 2009

Envision was proud to contribute $1.4 million this past year in the 

form of charitable donations to worthy causes and organizations 

in our communities across British Columbia. With focused giving 

in the areas of education and lifelong learning, arts and culture, 

protecting the planet and strengthening the voluntary sector, 

we continue to help make our communities vibrant places to work, 

learn, play and live.

GATEWAY OF HOPE

No moment in 2009 engendered more pride among Envision 

employees than the grand opening of the Salvation Army’s 

Gateway of Hope in Langley. Envision’s sponsorship of $20,000 

played an important role in establishing the brand new 32,000 

square foot homeless shelter, which is complete with 30 emergency 

beds, 25 independent living beds, and a meal centre capable of 

serving 95,000 meals per year. Seniors facing homelessness, men 

and women wrestling with addictions, children fl eeing abusive 

situations—all can obtain access to safe shelter, social services, 

and programs to help them reintegrate into society. And as the 

Gateway of Hope thrives in Langley, Envision’s involvement 

continues with the Salvation Army Community Council.

A selection of the nonprofi t 

partner organizations 

Envision supported 

fi nancially in 2009 includes:

• Abbotsford Arts Council

• Abbotsford Community   

 Foundation

• Big Brothers Big Sisters 

 Upper Fraser Valley

• Chilliwack and District Seniors’   

 Resource Society

• Delta Hospital Foundation

• Douglas College Foundation

• Fraser Valley Health 

 Care Foundation

• Hope and District Arts Council

• Hope Brigade Days

• Kitimat Concert Series

• Langley School District 

 Foundation

• Mission Community 

 Services Society

• Mission Heritage Association

• Newton Advocacy Group Society

• Peace Arch Hospital Foundation

• Ridge Meadows 

 Hospital Foundation

• Salvation Army Gateway of Hope

• Surrey Food Bank

• Surrey Hospice Society

For Envision Financial, being a leader in corporate citizenship means 

thinking strategically about strengthening our communities and then 

taking targeted action to make a diff erence in specifi c areas of focus. 

It means intentionally building partnerships with community organizations 

that embody excellence in the way they meet real community needs. 

Despite the economic challenges of 2009, we proudly maintained our 

long-standing commitment to give back generously to the communities 

we serve.

Actual Corporate Citizenship Disbursements in 2009

Communications/Miscellaneous (5%)

Community Partnerships (25%)

Educational Partnerships (10%)

Employer Supported Volunteerism (5%)

Sponsorships (25%)

Strategic Philanthropy (30%)



BEYOND FINANCIAL SUPPORT: 

EMPLOYEES VOLUNTEERING

2009 saw Envision advance its commitment to extensive 

employee volunteerism, as employees personally invested 

approximately 3,125 hours in community organizations 

throughout British Columbia. The Days of Caring program 

celebrated its third year of success as more than 100 

Envision staff  members rolled up their sleeves and 

volunteered in-person with organizations including the 

Fraser Valley Gleaners, Langley Seniors Resource Centre, 

Hope Community Services and the Friends in Need Food 

Bank to name just a few.

PUBLIC HONOURS IN 2009

In addition to being named the Surrey Food Bank’s 2009 

Outstanding Corporate Donor, Envision received the 

Langley School District Foundation’s 2009 Appreciation 

Award in recognition of our employee volunteerism in the 

local school system and our annual support of summer 

literacy programs.

THE ENVISION CHARITABLE FOUNDATION: 

BUILDING HEALTHY, STRONG COMMUNITIES

In 2009, the Envision Charitable Foundation’s endowment 

funds surpassed $5.5 million. This was in part due to a 

$1 million donation from Valley First Credit Union to create 

the Valley First Endowment to support the communities in 

the Okanagan, Similkameen, and Thompson regions of BC.

As Envision begins a new chapter as a division of First West 

Credit Union, we look to a future fi lled with new possibilities 

in corporate citizenship. Our colleagues in the Valley First 

division are as passionate as we are about strategically 

enhancing the local communities we serve. We share the 

same vision to inspire and achieve locally-focused positive 

social change—leading, learning, and living in our 

communities across British Columbia.

Envision is proud to be associated 

with the following organizations 

and associations that facilitate 

leadership and breakthrough 

practices in corporate citizenship:

• Imagine Canada

•  London Benchmarking Group 

 (LBG) Canada

•  Canadian Business for 

 Social Responsibility

•  Vantage Point

•  United Way
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Contributions from the 

Foundation in 2009 totaled 

$200,330 to worthy community 

causes and organizations 

including:

• Abbotsford Regional Hospital 

 & Cancer Centre

• Advanced Coronary Treatment   

 Foundation

• Big Brothers Big Sisters, 

 Upper Fraser Valley

• Children of the Street Society 

• Chilliwack and District Seniors’   

 Resource Society

• Crescent Beach 

 Community Services

• Delta Hospice Society

• Delta Hospital Foundation

• Eagle Ridge Hospital Foundation

• Fraser Valley Health Care   

 Foundation (Chilliwack Hospital)

• Langley Community Services

• Muscular Dystrophy Canada

• Ridge Meadows Hospital   

 Foundation

• Royal Columbian Hospital   

 Foundation

• United Way of the Lower Mainland

• Zajac Ranch for Children

Since its inception in 1996, the 

Foundation has distributed more 

than $1.5 million in grants for 

important community-building 

causes and organizations.



Envision empowers 

its employees to 

succeed and grow.
THIS ORGANIZATION IS ALL ABOUT ENABLING EMPLOYEES TO GET OUT AND MAKE A DIFFERENCE.

WE ARE FAMILY



employee family

EMPOWERING EMPLOYEES TO MAKE A DIFFERENCE
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Envision employee Brian Bevilacqua faced a unique dilemma.

He loved his job at Envision, where he’d worked for several years in Marketing and 

Communications. However, he’d just encountered the opportunity of a lifetime: 

to volunteer for one year in South Asia with a human rights agency that works to 

combat issues like forced child labour, sexual exploitation and human traffi  cking. 

For Brian, who had been active about social justice issues since his student days, 

it was a prospect he couldn’t let pass.

Brian approached his supervisors at Envision and told them about the opportunity, 

unsure of what to expect. He was amazed by their response.

“Most companies would tell you to resign and then reapply for a job upon returning 

from your volunteer stint,” Brian says. “Not Envision. My colleagues here immediately 

began working with me on an arrangement that would allow me volunteer for 

a year’s time and then return to Envision.”

Brian was even more impressed when leaders in the organization wholeheartedly 

encouraged his desire to volunteer. “The support I received from all levels of the 

organization was incredible,” he reiterates.

After nearly a full year of work in a South Asian mega-city, Brian returned to Envision, 

enthusiastic to get back to work for a company he appreciates more than ever.

“In South Asia I met other volunteers who’d been forced to permanently quit their 

previous jobs,” he says, “and they were perpetually worried about fi nding work 

when they returned home, especially during economically challenging times. 

Knowing that I had a great company like Envision to return to allowed me to 

focus on my work abroad. ”

“This isn’t atypical for Envision, either,” he points out. “This organization is all about 

enabling its employees to get out and make a diff erence, with initiatives like Days 

of Caring and an extensive Volunteer Recognition Program.”

“It’s no surprise to me that Envision has been recognized as one of Canada’s 50 Best 

Employers for eight years running,” Brian adds. “Envision empowers its employees 

to succeed and grow.”

BRIAN 

BEVILACQUA

Manager , 

Communications 

& Public Relations



employee family (continued)
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FIRST THINGS FIRST: EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

Envision has always been a people-fi rst organization. The way we look 

at it, our employees are the cornerstone of our organization. We couldn’t 

do business without them. 

Envision employed more than 800 people at the end of 2009. With the 

merger of Envision and Valley First to establish First West Credit Union 

on January 1, 2010, our ranks grew to 1,250 employees. 

The merger will bring change to our organizational structure. 

But many aspects of our business will remain the same, including 

our vision to be the best place our employees have ever worked. 

To achieve our vision, we invest in our people and foster a fl exible 

workplace that is engaging and professionally rewarding. We also create 

an atmosphere that challenges and motivates our people to reach their 

highest potential through knowledge, and to provide truly exceptional 

service for our members. 

MEASURING OUR PERFORMANCE 

We measure our performance with the following three key 

performance indicators:

• Leadership: We conduct an annual survey of our employee’s views 

 of the eff ectiveness of our leadership team and its eff orts to support  

 staff  in areas of excellence, innovation and achievement. 

 Our 2009 score: 77% of employees responded favourably   

 compared with 79% in 2008. 

• Learning: We conduct an annual employee survey to measure our  

 eff ectiveness in providing educational resources for our employees’  

 personal and career development.

 Our 2009 score: 80% of employees responded favourably   

 compared with 81% in 2008.

• Employee engagement and advocacy: Engaged employees who are  

 fully involved in and enthusiastic about their work are a competitive  

 advantage. Our objective is to attain employee engagement scores  

 that qualify Envision for top-50 ranking in a national survey of   

 Canadian companies. 

 Our 2009 score: Envision was recognized for the eighth straight year  

 as one of the 50 Best Employers in Canada in a survey conducted  

 by Hewitt Associates, a global human resources consulting company,  

 and published in the Globe and Mail’s Report on Business magazine.

MAINTAINING TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT IN A CHALLENGING YEAR 

The economic slowdown that characterized most of 2009 was challenging 

for our employees and for our organization. Through prudent and 

rigourous people management, Envision was able to uphold a no-layoff  

policy. We also maintained all employee training and development 
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programs, and continued to off er our employees the services of career planners 

and coaches even though career advancement opportunities were less frequent 

than in past years. 

Our objective was to ensure that we could draw on a skilled talent pool when 

the British Columbia economy improved and our business activity increased. 

We also wanted to reaffi  rm our commitment to our employees’ wellbeing by 

providing them the necessary tools and resources to help them live the best 

possible life.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT HIGHLIGHTS

In 2009, Envision:

• Promoted or moved laterally 131 employees compared with 135 employees  

 hired externally, which helped to maintain a balanced workforce. 

• Facilitated more than 70 training programs on a wide range of 

 topics, including managing operational expenses and improving the   

 member experience.

• Organized nearly 1,100 staff  training days through internal course off erings,  

 an increase of approximately 10% compared to past years. 

• Created a training video for staff  to support our Member Assistance Program,  

 an initiative developed to help members cope with fi nancial challenges   

 during the economic downturn. 

• Developed e-learning programs and webinars that allow staff  to learn in 

 our offi  ces. These programs improve access to training and eliminate 

 travel time and expenses, which saves the organization approximately   

 $2,000 per program.

• Organized a leadership event to help establish eff ective approaches to sales.  

 A comprehensive training presentation was developed subsequently that   

 allows branch management to lead 18 training modules for branch staff . 

PREPARING FOR A FLU PANDEMIC 

When the threat of the H1N1 fl u pandemic emerged in 2009, we responded 

proactively by establishing a comprehensive pandemic plan. Our objective was 

to create the framework for a pandemic response that would reduce risks to 

our organization, employees and members. 

We tested our plan internally and retained a consultant to confi rm our 

preparedness. Today, we have a reliable means of responding before, during 

and after an outbreak. The pandemic plan ensures that Envision: 

• Maintains a pandemic team to activate, manage and update the plan.

• Provides its members with access to essential fi nancial services during 

 a pandemic.

• Provides for the safety and wellbeing of staff , including an appropriate   

 illness-leave policy.

TRANSITIONING TO FIRST WEST

As Envision moves ahead as a division of First West Credit Union, we’ll continue to 

focus on attracting, training and retaining top talent, and will to strive to be an 

employer of choice that respects, involves and creates opportunities for its employees.



“We found a perfect 

match in Envison.
WE COULDN’T HAVE DONE IT WITHOUT THEIR HELP.”

A DYNAMIC RELATIONSHIP



members

When Natasha and Vladymyr Bolshakov walked through the doors of Envision’s 

Vintage Hills Branch in 2007, they were armed with little more than a business plan 

and the funds to cover a few months worth of operating costs.

As leading experts in the production of engineered wood acoustical wall and ceiling 

panels, the Bolshakovs had worked in Europe and the United States for more than a 

decade before relocating to Summerland, BC. When they opened their new business 

Geometrik Manufacturing Inc., Vladymyr and Natasha needed a banking partner 

who understood Geometrik’s potential and would help the company grow.

“We found a perfect match in Envision,” explains Natasha. “From day one it was 

obvious that we weren’t just another account number, and that was very important 

to us.” 

Envision’s Business Development Manager Dwight Folk got creative and provided 

the couple with a line of credit secured by receivables. “I’ve been in the fi nancial 

services industry for a long time, and I could sense that this company was on the 

verge of something great,” he says. “Geometrik had a completely unique business 

concept, coupled with Vladymyr and Natasha’s incredible expertise and drive. I was 

determined to fi nd a way to help them succeed.” 

Over the next three years, a dynamic relationship developed between Envision 

and Geometrik: as the loans increased, so did Geometrik’s sales. In the fi rst year 

of operation, Geometrik achieved sales of $50,000, which grew to several hundred 

thousand in its second year and $2 million in its third. With a client list that includes 

the likes of Stanford University, the Queen Elizabeth Theatre, UBC’s Sauder School 

of Business and the Irving Convention Centre in Texas, business is booming 

for Geometrik.

Natasha and Vladymyr are quick to praise Envision, saying that they couldn’t have 

done it without Envision’s help. “Envision is such a valuable partner to our company—

becoming a member was one of the most important business decisions we’ve 

ever made.”

GEOMETRIK MANUFACTURING FINDS A TRUE PARTNER IN ENVISION
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Envision business 

member Geometrik 

Manufacturing 

outfi ts the ceilings 

and walls of theatres 

and lecture halls with 

special acoustically-

engineered 

wood panels.



members (continued)

THE BEST PLACE OUR MEMBERS HAVE EVER DEALT 

Exceptional member service has defi ned Envision for more than 60 years. 2009 was 

no diff erent. This year we revamped our service standards and made a concerted eff ort to 

emphasize world class service—providing unbeatable, top-quality experience characterized 

by friendliness, trust, expert advice, localness, and of course, the commitment to putting 

members’ needs above all else. In 2009, Envision’s member satisfaction scores exceeded 

the industry average: 80.2% of members and 81% of insurance customers reported being 

satisfi ed or very satisfi ed with their Envision experience. While our high scores refl ect that 

we’re fulfi lling our goal to be the best place our members have ever dealt, we’ll continue 

pushing ourselves to exceed our members’ expectations.

THE RIGHT PRODUCTS AND SERVICES AT THE RIGHT TIME

In 2009 we renewed our focus on proactively identifying our members’ needs and then 

recommending products and services to meet those needs. Our members told us that 

they want our staff  to better inform them about the comprehensive line of products 

we off er. We responded by dramatically increasing referrals across our lines of business 

and educating members about what our wide-range of products can do for them—from 

retail banking, to insurance, to business, to automotive leasing, to wealth management. 

In 2010, we’ll continue to focus on showing our members how Envision can meet all 

of their fi nancial needs.

BEING THERE FOR OUR MEMBERS IN A TIME OF NEED

Poor economic conditions made 2009 a diffi  cult year for many British Columbians. 

With global markets sagging and unemployment surging in British Columbia, some 

members were dealt unexpected fi nancial blows. Envision worked hard to anticipate 

members’ needs in this challenging economic environment, and in spring of 2009, 

introduced the Member Assistance Program (MAP), a special initiative that helped 

dozens of member families manage their debts, keep their homes and avoid bankruptcy. 

Our staff  worked locally with individual members facing unforeseen fi nancial crises to 

develop unique solutions. Sometimes this included the extension of amortizations on 

current fi xed mortgages, providing interest-only payments on fi xed credit, or the 

refi nancing of existing Envision debts, for example.

The Member Assistance Program proved particularly crucial to those members at our 

Snow Valley Branch in Kitimat who were directly impacted by the sudden closure of a 

large local mill. Envision came through for them when it mattered, working with them 

through an extraordinarily tough time to create personally tailored fi nancial solutions.

SECURE PROTECTION FROM FRAUD

With debit card fraud losses aff ecting Canadians across the country in 2009, Envision 

worked proactively to ensure that our members enjoyed high standards of protection 

and security. This year, our Corporate Security team implemented enhanced security 

features to minimize loss related to debit card skimming. Envision’s fraud detection 

systems continued to monitor unusual account activity, and in addition to blocking 
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members’ debit cards when suspicious situations were detected, our staff  personally 

notifi ed members of potentially fraudulent transactions.

In the headline-making events of mass debit card fraud that touched customers of 

virtually all major banks and credit unions in British Columbia this past year, Envision 

demonstrated an impressive response—while some customers at other fi nancial 

institutions waited lengthy periods of time to be reimbursed, our members had their 

money back in their hands in less than 48 hours.

ENHANCING INSURANCE OFFERINGS

The acquisition of Simmons, Black, and Emsland Insurance in Kamloops—an agency 

with tremendous expertise—wasn’t the only move Envision made to off er members 

and clients improved access to insurance products. We also added three Life Insurance 

Specialists to better serve our members’ insurance needs.

GROWING OUR MEMBERS’ WEALTH 

Envision’s Wealth Management experts manage assets in excess of $582 million. 

Like other Canadians, our members and clients experienced the uncertainty 

and pressures of an economic downturn and fi nancial market turmoil in 2009. 

Envision helped them weather the storm, communicating with them more than 

ever to keep them informed and engaged, while providing comprehensive fi nancial 

planning, investment strategies, tax-optimization plans and personal insurance strategies. 

These services complemented our comprehensive product line that includes **stocks, 

bonds, mutual funds, segregated funds and other life insurance products. We continued 

to broaden our investment product line in 2009, introducing a tax free savings account.

DOING MORE FOR LOCAL BUSINESSES

Small and medium-sized businesses are lifeblood in the veins of the British Columbian 

economy. To gain competitive advantage, local businesses need local banking 

solutions—sophisticated tools and comprehensive services combined with the 

responsiveness of a fi nancial institution that makes decisions locally, takes the time 

to truly understand local needs, and invests itself in local businesses’ success. 

That’s exactly what Envision’s team of commercial banking experts provided its 

business members this past year. With an unwavering focus on providing local 

decision making and innovative products, Envision continues to off er small and 

medium-sized business unbeatable service.

MOVING AHEAD WITH FIRST WEST

With the unifi cation of Envision and Valley First under First West Credit Union, our overall 

membership base has increased from 120,000 members to approximately 167,000. 

We’re excited about the enhanced network our members now have access to—it’s 

another important step in leading the way when it comes to exceptional service for 

our members.

23

E
N

V
IS

IO
N

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
0

9



WE’RE HELPING TO PUT KIDS ON A LIFELONG PATH

OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSCIOUSNESS.

“Envision Financial’s 

support for the Run for Water 

changes lives.”

ECO INITIATIVES



ENVISION MAKES POSSIBLE SUSTAINABLE OPTION FOR CLEAN WATER IN ETHIOPIA
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environment

Water is the lifeblood of our planet—our human survival depends on it. 

Imagine living in a rural Ethiopian village where access to clean water is so 

severely limited that children and their families face the threat of assault and 

kidnapping on a daily basis in their search for it.

Committed to the belief that environmental stewardship is important both locally 

and internationally, Envision Financial joined forces this year with an Abbotsford-

based non-profi t society to sponsor Run for Water—a 5K, 10K, and half-marathon 

running event. The run raised more than $81,000 for Hope International 

Development Agency, which taps into water springs in Ethiopia for villages 

currently living without clean water. The organization estimates that it only takes 

$35 to provide one person in Ethiopia with clean water in an environmentally 

sustainable way for life. 

“Without access to clean water, many people have no hope of pulling out of the 

cycle of poverty,” says Ken Baerg, director of the Run for Water Society. “Access to 

clean water is critical to their health and the ability to start to become economically 

empowered. Envision’s support for the Run for Water changes lives.”

What’s more, Run for Water goes beyond helping the people of rural Ethiopia—

local students are benefi ting as well. “We wanted to ensure there was an 

educational component associated with the run, so we brought the major issues 

behind Run for Water into the classroom,” says Envision’s Manager, Corporate 

Citizenship, Susan Byrom. “By getting kids involved in real-life issues related to 

the need for global environmental sustainability, we’re helping to put them on a 

lifelong path of social and environmental consciousness—in their own community 

and around the world.”

KEN BAERG 

Director,

Run for Water Society
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At Envision, caring for the planet is a way of life. Our green practices 

and initiatives aren’t always fl ashy. But they are consistent, sensible, 

and, in the true credit union way, organic. Environmental stewardship 

at Envision means adopting practical environmentally-conscientious 

behaviours and approaches at every opportunity. It’s a process 

championed by senior leaders but executed at all levels of the 

organization. In 2009 we continued to seek out new ways to fulfi ll 

our commitment to protecting planet earth and making life a little 

greener for everyone.

“LEEDING” THE WAY WITH ENVIRONMENTALLY 

RESPONSIBLE BUILDINGS

With four Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 

awards already in our pockets and one more anticipated in 2010, 

Envision continues to demonstrate leadership when it comes to 

environmentally responsible buildings. LEED-certifi ed buildings 

like Envision’s Willoughby, Vintage Hills, Newton and Chilliwack City 

branches are constructed using recycled materials, low-emission 

paints, and low-fl ow plumbing appliances that minimize water 

consumption. They employ motion sensor light triggers, zoned heating 

systems, low-energy light bulbs, and windows that maximize natural 

light to reduce electricity usage. Green buildings like ours 

make sense both environmentally and economically.

This year, we hosted a team of guests from the International Facilities 

Management Association who visited Envision specifi cally to learn 

about our environmentally responsible buildings. The guests came 

from all over the world to tour our award-winning green facilities and 

observe fi rsthand the environmentally-friendly technologies that have 

earned Envision accolades. It’s another example of Envision leading 

the way in environmental corporate citizenship.

OFFSETTING CARBON EMISSIONS

In 2009 Envision’s executive team opted to purchase carbon off sets for 

the essential travel that their jobs require. And in order to decrease the 

amount of travel required in the fi rst place, we used videoconferencing 

equipment more extensively than ever before. It’s an important stride 

in the continuum of initiatives aimed at shrinking our environmental 

footprint and reducing our impact on the planet. To further crack 

down on overall carbon outputs, Envision introduced rewards and 

incentives for employees who chose to carpool to work.

environment (continued)



A RECYCLING REVOLUTION 

Being proud of the fact that we’ve been recycling waste products for 

many years didn’t stop us from challenging ourselves to do even 

better in 2009. We kicked our eff orts up a notch by installing better 

waste-sorting receptacles at locations like our Envision Financial 

Administration Centre in Langley. We also took particular care to ensure 

that obsolete or broken computers and other electronic devices were 

safely disposed of through B.C.’s Return-It electronics recycling program.

PRESERVING PAPER

Though recycling paper waste is standard practice at Envision, we 

made it a priority in 2009 to reduce the amount of paper we consume. 

Our staff  adopted simple but eff ective practices like double-sided 

printing and sticking to electronic employee communications. Green 

meetings within our offi  ces became more widespread. In fact, there’s 

a good chance you’re reading this very paragraph electronically—the 

Annual Report is just one of the paper-hungry documents Envision is 

printing fewer copies of in favour of paper-free, electronic versions.

KEEPING IT CLEAN

With more than 233,556 square feet of space in our 21 branches, 20 

insurance offi  ces, and regional offi  ce, we’ve got a lot of terrain to keep 

sparklingly clean. That’s why in 2009 Envision chose to use non-toxic, 

biodegradable, environmentally friendly cleaning products exclusively. 

Green cleaning not only benefi ts our employees’ and members’ health, 

but stops potentially harmful chemicals found in traditional cleaning 

products from being released into the environment.

SHARING ENVIRONMENTAL VALUES WITH THE NEXT GENERATION

In conjunction with the massively successful Envision-sponsored Run for 

Water, Envision established a special socio-environmental education 

program for students in Abbotsford’s School District. “Envision a Better 

World—Learn, Create, Run” enabled local children and teens to learn 

about environmental principles and sustainable initiatives halfway 

across the world. Students then showed their support by participating 

in the Run for Water. More than 200 students benefi tted from Learn, 

Create, Run in 2009, and we anticipate even more in 2010.

This year Envision also proudly helped sponsor the “Stream of Dreams” 

eco-education program for students at Willoughby Elementary School. 

The participating children completed an artistic project as they learned 

about protecting our local watersheds, streams, rivers and oceans.

PUTTING THE ENVIRONMENT FIRST

As Envision moves ahead as a division of First West Credit Union,

expect us to continue looking for creative ways to shrink our

environmental footprint and protect the planet.
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management’s discussion and analysis

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides additional commentary and information on the results of 

operations and fi nancial condition of Envision Credit Union for the year ended December 31, 2009. The MD&A is an 

integral part of the consolidated fi nancial statements and comprises the following sections: 

General Review of Envision 

This section presents a summary of key fi nancial and non-fi nancial performance indicators for 2009 and a profi le of 

the credit union, including its vision and strategy. It also provides an industry description and trends, a discussion 

of signifi cant changes in accounting policies and fi nancial governance. 

Comprehensive Financial Analysis 

This section provides a detailed fi nancial analysis of the consolidated statement of income of the credit union, 

including an analysis of results by business segment and management’s business outlook and strategy for each 

business segment.

Review of Financial Position

This review provides a discussion of balance sheet management, credit quality, capital management and fi ve-year 

comprehensive review chart.

Outlook and Strategy for 2010

The outlook and strategy section provides an overview of British Columbia’s economic forecast for 2010 to 2014 

and summarizes management’s primary business goals, including key fi nancial and operational performance 

indicators for 2010. 

Risk Management

This segment of the MD&A discloses the principal risks to the credit union and the risk-management strategies 

that the credit union uses to mitigate those risks.

Additional Information 

We discuss in this section our progress converting to International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Like the fi nancial statements, the MD&A gives Envision the opportunity to demonstrate accountability to its members 

through eff ective stewardship of resources and meeting stated strategic objectives. The fi nancial statements refl ect 

what happened, while the discussion and analysis explains why it happened. The following discussion and analysis 

is the responsibility of management and is as of February 12, 2010.

GENERAL REVIEW OF ENVISION

2009 Financial Highlights 

• Loans to members increased $91.6 million, or 3.4%, to $2.8 billion 

• Deposits from members increased $127.1 million, or 4.7%, to $2.9 billion

• Operating effi  ciency ratio was 80.3%, an improvement of 780 basis points from 88.1% in 2008 

• Net interest income was $58.7 million, an increase of $9.5 million, or 19.2%, from 2008 

• Non-interest income was $72.5 million, an increase of $5.5 million, or 8.2%, from 2008

• Net income was $22.0 million, an increase of $10.4 million, or 88.9%, from 2008

• The credit union paid dividends of $380,000 to members, bringing the total dividends paid over the last decade 

 to more than $6 million
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PROFILE OF ENVISION 

About Envision 

Envision had 21 branches and 21 insurance offi  ces throughout British Columbia on December 31, 2009. It had 

$3.6 billion in assets under administration, approximately 120,000 members, and more than 800 employees. 

Envision owns a number of subsidiary companies, including Envision Insurance Services Ltd., Envision Investment 

Services Ltd., CU DealerLink Ltd. and Envision Leasing Ltd., and 65% of inUnison Technology Services Ltd.

On January 1, 2010, Envision merged with Valley First Credit Union, of Penticton, British Columbia, establishing 

First West Credit Union. First West is the third-largest credit union in British Columbia, with 37 branches and 

29 insurance offi  ces throughout British Columbia, $5.1 billion in assets under administration, 1,250 employees 

and 167,000 members. 

Envision and Valley First operate as separate divisions of First West. Envision operates under the Envision Financial 

brand throughout British Columbia’s Lower Mainland and Fraser Valley and in Kitimat, Smithers and West Kelowna, B.C. 

Valley First operates under the Valley First brand throughout British Columbia’s Okanagan, Similkameen and 

Thompson regions. The Envision Financial branch in West Kelowna will eventually be converted to operate under 

the Valley First brand, as outlined in the First West Credit Union amalgamation agreement.

Vision and Strategy

Our goal is to be the best fi nancial institution in Canada. We align our business strategies with our vision of being: 

• the best place our employees have ever worked

• the best service provider our members have ever experienced

• industry leaders in fi nancial success 

• leaders in corporate citizenship

Our growth strategy is to provide exceptional member service and to act as an advocate on behalf of our members, our 

staff  and for the communities that we serve. We have, therefore, created a broad range of innovative, competitively-

priced products and services that provide value for our members. We have also established subsidiary companies to 

diversify and increase our revenue sources and to complement our banking services in areas such as insurance, wealth 

management and automotive fi nancing. 

We address the competitive nature of our marketplace with a diff erentiation strategy we call localness. By making 

decisions locally and maintaining a high profi le in the communities where we operate, Envision aims to establish 

strong brand awareness. We are also building an interprovincial fi nancial services network through our Pathways 

Project to better serve our members. This innovative network will be closely aligned with the values and expectations 

of our members and credit union partners. 

Industry Description and Trends

Envision operates primarily in the Canadian banking industry. Highly concentrated and competitive, this sector 

includes 22 domestic banks and 26 foreign bank subsidiaries. It also includes the Canadian credit union system

 to which Envision belongs. That system comprises 425 credit unions nationwide, 48 of which are based in 

British Columbia, where they conduct business through 373 branches in 140 communities. 

MD&A (continued)



Five Canadian banks dominate the retail banking market. They compete aggressively for residential mortgage, 

high-yield savings account, term deposit and commercial banking business. Their market share has grown primarily 

through the acquisition of trust companies and other non-bank fi nancial institutions. 

Foreign and regional banks have gained market share in Canada because of changes to the country’s Bank Act. 

Those changes enable foreign and regional banks to compete for a share of the Canadian market’s residential 

mortgages and consumer loans. Most domestic and foreign fi nancial institutions concentrate on dominating 

the country’s lucrative business segments to maximize profi ts and, in turn, reward shareholders. 

The country’s credit unions are community-focused, values-based organizations. They are dedicated to the betterment 

of their members and of the communities where they operate. Their success, and that of the credit union system as 

a whole, is rooted in shared Canadian values. They lack, though, many of the effi  ciencies and services that come with 

the signifi cant revenues and customer bases of their larger, mostly bank counterparts in Canada. And that causes them 

to operate at lower levels of profi tability than those fi nancial institutions. 

Canadian credit unions, however, have begun to consolidate, to enhance services, improve operational effi  ciencies and 

strengthen the co-operative fi nancial system of which they are members. In 2008, for example, the British Columbia 

and Ontario credit union trade associations merged to form Central 1 Credit Union. Atlantic Canada’s credit union trade 

associations have agreed to merge in mid-2010. And the consolidation of Canada’s trade union associations is expected 

to continue, as is consolidation of local credit unions. In its 2010 budget, the federal government proposed a new 

legislative framework that will allow credit unions to operate nationally. This benefi ts Canadians seeking more choice in 

the fi nancial services landscape, and also gives credit unions like First West more growth options, while it strengthens 

the credit union system as a whole.

Envision is among a growing number of the country’s larger credit unions to have merged in recent years. It and other 

credit unions are amalgamating primarily because the past few years have highlighted the risks of operating a fi nancial 

organization in an increasingly volatile and interconnected world. In 2009, low interest rates, a widespread recession 

and rising unemployment put fi nancial pressures on credit unions, resulting in lower fi nancial margins and increased 

provision for credit losses. The Canadian credit union system nonetheless continues to perform well.

Financial Governance

Financial governance is the process by which Envision maintains the integrity and transparency of fi nancial reporting 

to its stakeholders. This process ensures that the credit union’s fi nancial statements are understandable and fairly 

refl ect its fi nancial aff airs.

The Board’s Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for fi nancial governance. Committee members are appointed 

by the Board after each annual general meeting and must be independent and fi nancially literate.

The purpose of the committee includes:

• reviewing with the external auditor the fi nal audit report, audited annual fi nancial statements and management’s

 representation letter to the auditors; 

• reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval the quarterly fi nancial statements;

• reviewing all regulatory fi lings and fi nancial information issued by the credit union prior to publication in any

 annual report or public disclosures;

• receiving reports from the internal and external auditors on material issues related to internal control or fi nancial   

 reporting controls;

• receiving and reviewing quarterly risk reports from the risk department. 
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Envision’s fi nancial governance processes are comparable to industry standards and provide reasonable assurance to 

the Board that important information is communicated to it in a timely fashion. This, in turn, ensures that complete 

and reliable fi nancial information is communicated to Envision’s members.

COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Operating Effi  ciency 

The expense-to-revenue ratio measures the relationship between operating expenses and revenue. The lower the 

ratio, the greater the effi  ciency. Operating effi  ciency is a key measure of our ability to remain economically viable.

In the short term, operating effi  ciency gives us the fl exibility to respond quickly and eff ectively to competitive 

pressures in a dynamic marketplace. Longer term, operating effi  ciency ensures that we maximize fi nancial 

performance so that we are able to expand into new markets, add new fi nancial products and services, and pay 

a sustainable dividend to members. These activities also require that we sustain strong asset and deposit growth.

In 2009, our operating effi  ciency was 80.3%, compared with 88.1% in 2008. Revenue grew 12.9% during the year 

while operating expenses increased only 2.8%, which resulted in improved operating effi  ciency. Management is 

committed to continuously improving operational effi  ciency, as it is considered a strategic imperative in today’s 

highly competitive banking environment.
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The components of our operational effi  ciency ratio are addressed in the following sections.

Net Interest Income

In 2009, net interest income—interest and investment income earned on assets less interest incurred on deposits and 

borrowings—increased $9.5 million, or 19.2%, to $58.7 million from a year earlier. Net interest income as a percentage 

of average assets was 1.87% in 2009 compared to 1.84% in 2008. 

During the latter part 2009, the cost of borrowings and pricing for deposits fell, which lowered our cost of funds and 

improved our margin. The decrease in funding costs was partially off set by lower yields on prime-based loans, which 

declined because of historically lower interest rates during the previous year and a half. We also improved our fi nancial 

margin by re-pricing certain segments of our loan portfolios. Nevertheless, generally lower fi nancial margin and 

interest rates in 2009 led to a reduction in interest and dividends paid to members of $23.9 million, or 27.5%, 

compared with 2008. 

Provision for Credit Losses 

The provision for credit losses declined 50% at year-end to $2.5 million from $5.0 million the previous year. 

The reduction refl ects our expectations for lower credit losses following improvements in British Columbia’s 

economy in the latter half of 2009. A full discussion of this provision is provided in notes 2 and 7 of the consolidated 

fi nancial statements.

Non-Interest Income

A key part of our strategy is to diversify non-interest income, which comprises all income other than net interest 

income. To execute this strategy, we have established subsidiary companies that provide insurance, wealth 

management and automotive fi nancing services. In 2009, non-interest income increased $5.5 million, or 8.2%, 

to $72.5 million. A discussion and analysis of these operations is provided below in Business Segments.

Non-Interest Expenses

Non-interest expenses in 2009 increased $5.4 million, or 5.5%, to $102.9 million compared with 2008. The largest 

increases were salaries and benefi ts and amortization. Salaries and benefi ts increased $3.1 million, or 5.7%, 

to $56.9 million because of higher staffi  ng levels and compensation rates. Amortization increased $1.5 million, 

or 20.6%, to $9.0 million because of increases in our automotive leasing business and in investment in computer 

hardware to support our network infrastructure.

Business Segments 

Envision organizes its operations around fi ve main business segments: Retail Banking, Business Banking, 

Insurance Services, Wealth Management and Automotive Financing. The credit union’s other business activities, 

including those of inUnison Technology Services Ltd., are not considered material to its fi nancial performance 

and are not reported on separately. 

Retail Banking

Profi le 

Retail Banking operates under the brand name of Envision Financial. It provides a full range of competitively priced 

fi nancial products and services to our members. These range from our innovative Redfrog product and traditional 

mortgages to credit cards and chequing and savings accounts, among others.
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2009 Highlights

•  Consumer loans increased $100.8 million or 5.0%

•  Consumer deposits increased due to our continued focus on attracting term and demand deposits

Performance Review

We faced pressures on our fi nancial margin throughout much of 2009. Interest rates reached historical lows, capital 

market volatility carried over from 2008 and the worst recession in British Columbia since 1982 reduced consumer 

spending. We also faced heightened competition from other fi nancial services institutions for residential mortgages 

and deposits. 

During the latter part of 2009, however, the cost of credit and pricing for deposits fell, which lowered our cost of funds. 

We, in turn, improved our fi nancial margin by re-pricing our loan portfolios, reducing our lending costs and increasing 

our marketing of loan products. We also reduced our operating costs by, among other activities, converting to the 

in-house processing of automated bank machine (ABM) transactions. 

Our total loans to retail members increased $100.8 million, or 5.0%, compared with 2008. The increase was primarily 

in residential mortgages, which rose $112.2 million, or 7.3%. 

Loan-fee revenue increased signifi cantly in 2009, as many of our members took advantage of historically low interest 

rates to renew their residential mortgages early. 

Our retail members increased their deposits with us during 2009 primarily because of our continued focus on 

attracting term, and particularly short-term demand, deposits.

Industry and Market Review

Canada’s fi ve major banks dominate the retail banking market in British Columbia as elsewhere in the country. 

These institutions compete vigorously for residential mortgages, high-yield savings accounts and term deposits. 

Retail Banking at Envision seeks to earn market share and to build a loyal customer base by developing competitively 

priced, innovative products and services and by providing exceptional service, including acting as an advocate on 

behalf of our members. 

Business Outlook and Strategy 

We expect favourable operating conditions in 2010 as economic growth returns and housing markets continue 

to rebound. We believe that these conditions will to lead to growth in consumer lending from increased demand 

for residential mortgages, consumer loans and lines of credit. 

Interest rates are expected to remain low until fall 2010 and then begin to rise over the next 18 months. There is a risk 

that low rates may result in consumers taking on excessive debt loads that will result in higher interest payments when 

rates rise. We are, therefore, maintaining a cautious balance sheet growth strategy, which is outlined in the outlook and 

strategy section below.

Our priorities in 2010 are to remain focused on profi table growth, to deliver world-class, locally-focused service, 

to further integrate our business and to manage risk. We will continue to develop new and innovative products that 

we are confi dent will help us maintain our competitive advantage. We will also focus on integrating our operations 

to gain effi  ciencies in our delivery processes.
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Business Banking

Profi le 

Business Banking joins Retail Banking in operating under the Envision Financial brand name. It provides fi nancial 

products and services to our business members, from self-employed entrepreneurs to large organizations. We serve 

these businesses with a full range of fi nancial products and services to meet their borrowing, payroll, investment and 

daily operating needs.

2009 Highlights

• Commercial loans decreased $10.4 million or 1.5%

• Financial margin increased as the cost of funds declined and commercial loans were re-priced

• Commercial deposits rose as a result of active marketing and increased insurance protection on 

 credit union deposits 

Performance Review

In 2009, Business Banking again specialized in commercial real estate lending. It also formed a banking team dedicated 

to one of the fastest-growing segments of the Canadian economy: the small to medium-sized business market. 

Business Banking, however, faced the same diffi  cult fi nancial and operating conditions as Retail Banking in 2009. 

Nevertheless, our fi nancial margin improved in 2009 as the cost of funds declined and we completed a portfolio-wide 

review of commercial loan pricing.

Loans to our business members decreased $10.4 million, or 1.5%, compared with 2008. The decrease was primarily the 

result of a reduction in commercial loans, which declined $15.1 million, or 21.7%, which fell because of the recession 

in British Columbia during 2009. It also stemmed from our decision in 2008 to temporarily reduce our real estate loan 

portfolio to mitigate risks in that market. Growth of $3.2 million, or 0.6%, in our commercial mortgages partially off set 

the drop in business members loans. 

Our commercial real estate loan portfolio grew strongly at year-end 2009. This was largely the product of our renewed 

eff orts to increase our business in commercial loans amid improving local economies and housing markets during the 

second half of the year. Business members deposits increased in 2009, as a result of active sales and marketing 

programs to attract such deposits. The increase also owed much to changes in B.C.’s Financial Institutions Act that 

raised insurance protection to 100% on all B.C. credit union deposits.

Industry and Market Review

B.C.’s business banking sector joins that of retail banking in being highly competitive. Envision’s Business Banking 

segment competes with Canada’s principal banks, regional banks and other credit unions. Our bank competitors off er 

rates on loans and deposits that are competitive. Our advantage is our local decision making and insight into local 

business conditions, which allow us to approve loans faster and build stronger relationships with local businesses. 

Our expertise particularly in commercial real estate enables us to forge stronger ties with local businesses by better 

serving the special needs of business members. 

Business Outlook and Strategy 

An improved economic outlook for 2010 is anticipated in all of the business banking markets in which we compete. 

Strong real estate sales and heightened construction activity, together with improved margins on loans, bolster our 

confi dence in our business outlook. 
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Our lending strategy is to be selective, to protect our credit position and to achieve pricing appropriate to credit risk 

and credit spreads. We will continue to avoid competing against other fi nancial institutions in such areas of business 

as operating lines of credit secured by inventory. 

We expect that in 2010 our commercial loan portfolio will grow 5% and our line of credit portfolio 10%. We also 

expect to see continued growth in business deposits as these deposits are fully guaranteed by the government 

of British Columbia.

Insurance Services

Profi le 

Envision Insurance Services Ltd. operates 21 insurance offi  ces throughout British Columbia. It off ers a comprehensive 

range of property and casualty insurance and risk-management services that provide peace of mind to our members. 

Envision Insurance has grown since its formation in 1976 mainly by acquiring independent insurance agencies, 

including a 50% ownership interest in Bulkley Valley Insurance Services Ltd. and McBain Insurance Agency Ltd. 

More recently, it has emphasized internal growth by increasing the integration of its business with other Envision 

business segments. 

2009 Highlights 

• Property and casualty insurance revenue increased 11%

• ICBC auto insurance revenue increased 7%

• Contingent commission increased 105%

• Added an insurance agency based in Kamloops, B.C. 

Performance Review

Envision Insurance continued to deepen relationships with its customers, increase awareness of its services and 

improve service delivery. Revenues increased 35.2% to a record $12.8 million in 2009 primarily from internal growth 

and the addition of Riverside Insurance in 2008 and Simmons, Black and Emsland Insurance Services in 2009. 

We also streamlined and improved our operations to reduce expenses, and that contributed to a 2% increase 

in operating margin. In addition, we maintained our strategy of growth through acquisitions. Our purchase in 

2009 of Simmons, Black and Emsland Insurance Services, an independent insurance agency based in Kamloops, 

British Columbia, is our largest insurance offi  ce, with more than 20 employees. 

Industry and Market Review

The Canadian property and casualty insurance industry is highly fragmented and competitive. Home insurance policies 

and options diff er widely, but consumers view them as similar. Auto insurance accounts for approximately half of all 

insurance sold in Canada. In British Columbia, the auto insurance market is dominated by the Insurance Corporation 

of British Columbia, or ICBC. 

Our principal competition for insurance products and services overall is other independent insurance agencies. 

The potential for banks to increase their insurance business also is a legitimate threat, but it is chiefl y the ongoing 

consolidation of insurance companies and agencies that provides our greatest competition. Envision Insurance, 

however, is itself actively engaged in acquiring independent agencies as part of its growth strategy. 
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Business Outlook and Strategy 

We will continue in 2010 to promote internal growth in personal and commercial insurance sales and to more 

fully integrate our business with other Envision business segments. Our objective is to add value for customers by 

advocating for their well-being and by off ering them products and services that provide them with superb coverage 

for the money. In so doing, we add value to our business. 

The year ahead will see us maintain our emphasis on operational effi  ciencies. Our acquisition in 2009 of a 

Kamloops-based agency is a good strategic fi t with First West’s operations in central British Columbia and should, 

therefore, contribute to revenue growth, as should synergies with the other First West insurance division. We will 

look for further such opportunities to acquire independent insurance agencies as market conditions permit. 

Wealth Management

Profi le 

Envision Investment Services Ltd. helps our members manage their wealth with a broad range of products and 

services off ered directly and indirectly through Qtrade Advisor, a division of Qtrade Securities Inc. Our products 

include stocks, bonds and ***Ethical Funds, a family of mutual funds managed by credit union owned Northwest 

& Ethical Investments L.P. Our services include online investing and fi nancial planning.

2009 Highlights

• Increased assets 17% to $582 million 

• Achieved record net sales of proprietary **mutual funds and life insurance 

•  Completed conversion to Qtrade Financial Group for our investment dealer and insurance platforms

Performance Review

Equity and bond markets around the world sustained signifi cant losses during the fi rst half of 2009 amid declines in 

economic growth in all major countries. Markets and investor confi dence improved in the second half of the year, 

however, as the economic outlook brightened. 

In 2009, Envision added six members to its investment advisory team and further integrated its Wealth Management 

operations with other Envision business segments. We also completed the conversion of our dealer administrative 

functions to Qtrade Financial Group. The platform provides the advanced technology to help us deliver personalized 

wealth management advice to our members. Additions to our advisory team and to our technological capabilities 

helped us to generate record net sales of ***Ethical Funds and of life insurance in 2009. Revenue from recurring 

mutual fund fees declined, however, because of weakness and volatility in equity markets. 

Net sales for our Wealth Management segment similarly decreased, to $33 million, down 27% from $45.0 million 

in 2008. This compares with the industry average decline of 90% as measured by the Investment Funds Institute 

of Canada. Assets under management at Envision increased in value by $83 million, or 17%.

Industry and Market Review

The wealth management industry in Canada is dominated by the major Canadian banks. The banks and their 

wealth management and online brokerage subsidiaries enjoy economies of scale that supports continued growth. 

The organizations maintain competitive advantage with national distribution networks for proprietary wealth 

management products and for investment advisory services. 
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Envision Investment Services centers its business development strategy on furnishing highly personalized fi nancial 

planning and advice to members. It seeks to increase share of the wealth management market by building on 

relationships within Envision, by advocating on behalf of members and by off ering a variety of investment products 

and services equal to or better than the competition’s.

Business Outlook and Strategy 

Bond and equity markets are expected to continue to recover in 2010. Our Wealth Management business segment, 

however, is taking a conservative approach to growth until the recovery is well established. It forecasts little if any 

growth in **mutual fund trailer fees in 2010. 

It has, though, set aggressive targets for the sale of new assets and plans to further diversify and grow revenue through 

the sale of life insurance products. The priority is to deepen relationships with members of Envision by delivering 

consistent, advice-based investment services across Envision’s network of branches. We will also seek revenue and 

cost synergies with Valley First Financial Services.

Automotive Financing 

Profi le 

Automotive Financing operates through two subsidiaries, Envision Leasing Ltd. and CU DealerLink Ltd. 

These companies work with select automotive dealers throughout British Columbia to deliver on-the-spot 

fi nancing to credit union members and non-member who are buying or leasing a vehicle.

CU DealerLink adjudicates, authorizes and fi nances by way of conditional sales contract the purchase of new and 

used passenger vehicles and light trucks. CU DealerLink then assigns those contracts for a fee to Envision and 

other partnering credit unions in British Columbia. Envision Leasing operates in the new and nearly new vehicle 

markets, off ering open- and closed-end leases for cars, trucks and vans. It also provides insurance and warranty 

products to lessees through third-party suppliers.

2009 Highlights 

• CU DealerLink’s revenue increased 7% 

• Envision Leasing’s revenue increased 48% to a record $8.6 million 

Performance Review

We continued to solidify relationships within our dealer network and to broaden that network in 2009. Our portfolio 

of leases and conditional sales contracts maintained attractive margins as a result of favourable pricing conditions 

in the automotive fi nancing market and a modest increase in lease administration fees. New loans in 2009 generated 

an average yield of 7.0%, compared with 6.9% in 2008. 

Both Automotive Financing subsidiaries benefi ted throughout the year from growing awareness among consumers 

of their services. Even though new vehicles sales in British Columbia declined nearly 15% in 2009 compared with 2008, 

Envision Leasing’s lease portfolio increased 54%, and its revenue increased 48% to a record $8.6 million. 
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CU DealerLink adjudicated the purchase of more than 3,429 vehicles in 2009, compared with 3,340 vehicles in 2008. 

In 2009, CU DealerLink’s revenue increased 7% and the volume of conditional sales contracts assigned to Envision 

increased 11.6% to $57.8 million, from $51.8 million in 2008. The portfolio of these contracts at year-end was 

$104 million.

Industry and Market Review

The automotive fi nancing industry is dominated by major Canadian banks and to a lesser extent by the fi nancial 

arms of the automakers. It is a dynamic industry with product off erings constantly changing. Drawing on their credit 

union roots, CU DealerLink and Envision Leasing provide attractive and convenient fi nancing options to consumers 

seeking alternatives to traditional fi nancing. Envision Leasing, for example, continues to fi ll a void created in the 

marketplace when some automakers ceased off ering vehicle lease programs. Both companies seek to increase 

market share by providing fast, effi  cient service on loan and leasing applications and by matching competitors’ 

periodic special-pricing programs. 

Business Outlook and Strategy 

Vehicle sales in Canada are expected to increase in 2010 because of pent-up demand and the aff ordability of 

new vehicles. Automotive Financing’s goal in this environment is to continue to grow its business in a controlled 

yet profi table manner. 

Priorities include expanding our dealer network, especially in the Okanagan, Similkameen and Thompson regions of 

British Columbia. The establishment of First West Credit Union in those regions has created an opportunity to introduce 

Envision Leasing and alternative fi nancing methods to the members of the Valley First division of First West. We also 

plan to add new partner credit unions and to increase the awareness of Automotive Financing’s services to attract new 

credit union members. Envision Leasing will continue to actively monitor lease-end residual values to mitigate the risk 

associated with the used-vehicle markets. 

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Balance Sheet Management

Total Assets 

Total assets increased $125.0 million, or 4.1%, in 2009 compared with 0.4% in 2008. The increase was primarily 

the result of an increase to loans to members ($91.6 million or 3.4%) as the British Columbia economy emerged 

from recession. Investments and other assets increased $16.8 million, or 5.4%, mainly because of an increase in term 

deposit investments. Funds under administration declined $228.7 million, or 17.4%, to $1.1 billion in 2009. 

Deposit Gathering Activities 

Members deposits increased $127.1 million, or 4.7%, during 2009. The increase was primarily due to our focus 

on attracting term and short-term demand deposits and amendments to the Financial Institutions Act, which now 

provides 100% insurance protection on all B.C. credit union deposits. 

Financing Activities 

Our requirement for fi nancing improved in 2009 as loan growth slowed due to the global economic downturn and 

fi nancial crisis. Deposits increased as our members took a more cautious approach to investing. 
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While many conduits for the securitization of loans in Canada have closed in recent years, the Canada Mortgage 

Bond Program through Central1 Credit Union continues to provide a stable source of liquidity. We continue to 

closely monitor requirements for and availability of fi nancing. 

Loans 

Total loans to members increased $91.6 million, or 3.4%, compared with 2008. The increase occurred primarily 

in residential mortgages, which rose $112.2 million, or 7.3%. The increase was off set by a decline in personal lines 

of credit, which fell $15.0 million, or 5.6%. 

Credit Quality

Allowance for Credit Losses

Our balance sheet allowance for credit losses as of December 31, 2009, was $11.9 million, a decrease of $1.6 million, 

or 11.9%, from the previous year. The allowance represents 0.43% of total loans and accrued interest, compared with 

0.50% a year ago. We believe that the total allowance for credit losses is adequate based on current economic factors 

and our analysis of the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2009. 

In addition to maintaining a general allowance of 0.37% of loans, specifi c allowances are evaluated monthly on an 

account-by-account basis. A complete analysis of our allowance for credit losses, including impaired loans, is provided 

in Note 17 of the consolidated fi nancial statements. 

Capital Management 

As of December 31, 2009, the credit union had a capital ratio of 13.4% on a risk-weighted basis, compared with 

11.8% in 2008. This compares favourably with the prescribed minimum ratio of 8% of total risk-weighted assets. 

A complete analysis of our capital management objectives and policies is provided in Note 5 of the consolidated 

fi nancial statements.

Comparative Highlights 

($ in thousands)  2009 2008 2007 

Balance sheet assets 3,204,964   3,079,961 3,068,017

Funds under administration 1,088,800 1,317,506 1,382,245

Loans to members 2,779,869 2,689,476 2,714,022 

Member deposits 2,832,939  2,693,066 2,608,940 

Retained earning & equity shares 178,575  157,773  147,756 

Total fi nancial income & other income 196,401 212,542 203,485 

Interest & dividends paid to members 63,438 87,417 84,156 
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY FOR 2010

British Columbia Economic Forecast 1

The British Columbia economy is emerging from its worst recession since 1982. A moderate recovery is expected 

over the next two years, with real growth in the province’s gross domestic product of 2.5% in 2010 and 2.6% in 2011. 

Growth will return to pre-recession levels starting in 2012. 

The 2010 Olympic Winter Games provides a temporary economic boost and the implementation of the HST 

(harmonized sales tax) on July 1, 2010, will lift spending in the fi rst half of the year. Growth, however, is expected 

to decline in the second half of the year. Faster economic growth after 2011 is centred in the domestic economy, 

and private investment in particular, assisted by more residential housing and consumer activity. 

The recession and subsequent moderate recovery leave a substantial backlog of consumer and business demand that 

will be realized as conditions improve in 2010. Investment spending is forecast to increase from major projects in the 

utilities and transportation sectors. B.C.’s export sector, however, is expected to remains weak throughout the next 

fi ve years. A global economic recovery and higher commodity prices are positive factors for exports, but a strong 

Canadian dollar and a weak recovery in U.S. housing starts will restrain growth in exports. 

Other highlights of the economic forecast for 2010 to 2014 include:

• Growth in 2010 of personal income, which includes labour income, net earnings of business proprietors, interest,   

 dividends and investment income, and income transfers.

• Employment in 2010 will increase just 0.9%, refl ecting the weakness in the North American recovery, while the   

 unemployment rate will rise to 8.1% compared with 7.6% in 2009. 

• Population growth will be moderate, rising from 1.6% in 2009 to 1.8% annually by 2013.

• Consumer spending adjusted for infl ation increases to 2.5% during 2010 and to 2.6% in 2011.

• Business investment spending is expected to fall 10% in 2010 before increasing in 2011.

• Housing sales and starts are forecast to keep expanding for 2010 to 2014, with housing starts jumping more 

 than 50% in 2010 compared with 2009. 

• Consumer price infl ation is forecast at 1.5% for 2010, rising steadily to 2.2% by 2014.

The worst global and U.S. recession in decades is largely over, but its impact extends into 2010 and beyond. 

Recovering from the recession and a once-in-a-lifetime fi nancial crisis is fraught with uncertainties. The main 

short-term risks to the forecast are a double-dip recession or, more plausibly, a growth slowdown later in 2010 

and into 2011. 

The number of divergent views, and in some cases completely opposing views, of these risks speak to the high level 

of uncertainty. Policymakers in most countries, however, have displayed the will to enact measures to stimulate 

growth and rectify market problems. This is a considerable force that should not be underestimated, especially when

 it is coordinated across countries.
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1  Forecast information provided by Central 1 Credit Union



Outlook and Strategy for Envision and First West

We believe that a return to economic growth in British Columbia and more favourable operating conditions will enable 

us to improve our fi nancial performance in 2010 compared with 2009.

Our primary objectives for 2010 include: 

• undertaking merger-transition activities related to the formation of First West 

• harmonizing the human resource practices of Envision and Valley First divisions

• achieving fi nancial performance consistent with economic realities and our peer group

• looking for opportunities to integrate our business segments

• completing the conversion to International Financial Reporting Standards 

• maintaining profi table loan and deposit growth 

• funding our balance sheet eff ectively 

• continuing the implementation of an enterprise resource planning system that will integrate our organization’s   

 accounting and payroll computer systems

We are forecasting loan growth of 3.1%, with our consumer loan portfolio increasing 2.7% and our commercial 

loan portfolio rising 3.2%. Our lending strategy is to be selective to protect our credit position and to achieve 

pricing commensurate with credit risk and credit spreads. The prime rate is expected to rise in late 2010, 

which adds uncertainty to our forecast loan growth. We expect deposits from members to increase 4.8% in 2010, 

with demand deposits forecast to increase 6.1% and term deposits forecasted to grow 4.0%. 

In 2010, we will continue to control operating expense, however, we will incur one-time costs related to the 

formation of First West. We anticipate that operating effi  ciencies will be realized when merger-transition activities 

are completed and First West’s operating model is fi nalized. 

Our expenses are budgeted to increase in 2010, with the largest increase being personnel costs because of competitive 

market conditions and ongoing staff  training. Marketing expenditures, which were reduced in recent years because of 

poor economic conditions, will return to normal levels in support of sales and brand-awareness activities. In addition, 

investment in information technology will increase as we build infrastructure in support of long-term growth.

Operating effi  ciency is targeted to be 86.48% after estimated one-time merger expenses and 83.30% before 

such expenses. Our income tax rate, which is currently 25%, is expected to increase in 2010 as forecast income 

pushes the credit union into a higher tax bracket.

Our balance sheet strategy is to reduce borrowing levels as a percentage of assets to below 5% for the next fi ve years. 

We also intend to lower our leverage ratio by reducing off -balance sheet loans. Our capital management strategy 

for 2010 is to achieve a minimum capital ratio of 12.0% on a risk-weighted basis compared with 13.4% in 2009 and 

a prescribed minimum ratio of 8.0%.

We believe that securitization through the Canada Mortgage Bond Program provides a stable source of liquidity 

that we will continue to access quarterly.
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MD&A (continued)



The past few years have underscored the risks of operating a fi nancial institution in volatile and inter-connected 

economic and fi nancial environments. Despite an improving economic outlook for 2010 and rising house prices, 

consumer debt levels remain high and consumer confi dence is weak. Our outlook recognizes these realities and the 

need to prepare for the unexpected. 

Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 

The projections and targets included in this section involve numerous assumptions. A variety of factors may cause 

actual results to diff er materially from expectations. These factors include but are not limited to general business and 

economic conditions and changes in fi nancial markets. The reader should, therefore, not be place undue reliance on 

these projections.

Risk Management 

Our business activities require that we prudently measure and manage risks to ensure the fi nancial sustainability 

of the credit union. Risk is defi ned as the likelihood of an event occurring that impedes the achievement of an 

organization’s objectives. Risk management is the process for identifying, assessing, managing, and monitoring 

all risk factors that may adversely aff ect the operations, fi nancial results, and reputation of the credit union. 

The categories of signifi cant risks aff ecting Envision are credit, market, liquidity, regulatory, operational and strategic. 

We have established a risk profi le to assess our risk levels, their trends, and actions being taken on a quarterly basis. 

This framework includes appropriate tolerances, risk reporting, and Board and management risk policies to eff ectively 

manage and monitor risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is defi ned as the potential for loss from borrowers or counterparties who fail to meet their obligations 

in accordance with agreed terms. Credit risk is primarily centred in our lending activities, but is also present in other 

activities, including derivatives. The Board’s credit risk policy and corresponding management policies set indicators 

and thresholds for managing credit risk. The Board and management committees review regular reports on 

these metrics. Our internal audit group reviews compliance with these policies and tests for loan quality and 

documentation, and credit reporting. The group also attends Credit Risk Committee meetings and reports its audit 

activities and fi ndings to the Audit Committee and the Board.

We believe that credit risk is at an acceptable level as determined by Board policy and management’s quarterly reviews. 

During 2009, we monitored leading retail and commercial economic indicators and made adjustments to our lending 

policies to ensure that credit risk was managed within our tolerance level. We expect, however, that credit risk will 

decrease in 2010 as economic growth improves. However, that growth is vulnerable to downside risk and we will 

continue to monitor economic indicators and make adjustments as required.

Market Risk

Market risk is defi ned as the potential for loss that arises from changes to interest rates and foreign exchange rates. 

Exposure to this risk is what allows Envision to earn interest income on its loan and deposit portfolios. Our objective 

is to earn an acceptable return on our loan and deposit portfolios without taking unreasonable risk.

The acceptable amount of risk is defi ned by the Asset and Liability Management (ALM) policy, which is approved by 

the Board and reviewed annually by the Investment and Lending Committee (ILC). The level of market risk at Envision, 

as determined by the risk profi le and tolerances, is acceptable.
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MD&A (continued)



Our ALM policy defi nes the acceptable limits caused by changes in the volume, mix, maturity, quality, and interest 

and exchange rate sensitivity of assets and liabilities. Safety and soundness of Envision is an important part of the 

policy requirements.

We recognize the need for consistent profi ts balanced with appropriate market risk management measured 

against capital. Our treasury department manages day-to-day market risk within approved policies and reports 

monthly to management’s Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) to ensure policy compliance. Management provides 

quarterly reports on these matters to the ILC and the Board.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of having insuffi  cient cash resources to meet current fi nancial obligations without raising 

funds at unfavourable rates or selling assets on a forced basis. Our liquidity and funding management objective 

is to ensure Envision has access to suffi  cient, readily available funds to not only cover fi nancial obligations as they 

come due, but also to sustain and grow our business under both normal and stress conditions.

The acceptable amount of risk is defi ned by policies approved by the Board and monitored by the ILC. Envision’s 

senior management manages liquidity by monitoring and managing cash fl ows and the availability of credit facilities, 

wholesale funding, and securitization conduits according to approved policies.

Our liquidity at year-end exceeded the statutory liquidity ratio of 8% by $33.7 million. We expect liquidity to improve 

during 2010, as our deposit growth is budgeted to exceed loan growth. We have ready access to stable sources of 

funding and to the Canada Mortgage Bond Program through Central 1 Credit Union. We will continue to monitor 

liquidity and funding and to adjust our balance sheet growth as required.

Regulatory Risk

Regulatory risk is the risk of negative impact to our earnings or reputation as a result of failure to comply with or adapt 

to legal and regulatory requirements, industry practices, or ethical standards. Our operations are governed by various 

acts and regulations, and we are expected to meet a high standard in business dealings and transactions.

Senior management has identifi ed Envision’s legal and regulatory requirements, developed appropriate compliance 

policies, and assigned responsibility for meeting these policies. Senior management also engages external legal 

counsel to assist in identifying areas of potential regulatory risk and establishes processes to manage these risks.

Our Standards of Professional Conduct contain guidance for all employees on identifying actions that may have 

a legal impact on the organization.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is inherent in all business activities. It is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal 

processes and systems, human error, or from external events. This risk may impact our earnings, reputation, 

regulatory penalties, competitive position, or failure to manage other risks. The Board is responsible for providing 

oversight and ensuring that appropriate policies are implemented to manage operational risk.
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MD&A (continued)



Fraud is an additional operational risk faced by all fi nancial institutions. Fraud is an ever-evolving issue in the 

fi nancial services industry and although it is impossible to prevent all fraud, we have rigorous controls, procedures, 

and advanced security measures in place to safeguard the funds that our members entrust to us.

The strategies employed to manage operational risk include:

• establishing standards of professional conduct

• implementing policies and procedural controls

• reviewing internal control eff ectiveness and strengthening areas where needed

• initiating employee training programs

• managing property, liability, and fi nancial bond insurance programs to provide additional protection from loss

• updating and testing procedures and plans for disaster recovery and business continuity with our technology   

 systems and data

• establishing a process for employees to confi dentially report suspicious activities

• maintaining regular audits for compliance and eff ectiveness of controls by independent internal and external 

 audit teams, which provide senior management and the Audit Committee with recommendations to improve   

 internal controls

• issuing quarterly risk reports to the Board

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk arises from ineff ective business strategies, the absence of integrated business strategies, the inability 

to implement strategies, and the inability to adapt strategies to changes in the business environment. Strategic risks 

are monitored, assessed, and managed by management with oversight from the Board.

Reputational Risk 

Reputational risk arises from a deterioration of reputation with stakeholders, such as members, employees, the media, 

rating agencies and regulators that could cause a decline the credit union’s value, brand, liquidity or member base. 

An organization’s reputation is a valuable business asset. Consequently, we manage reputation risk in all aspects 

of our activity. 

Envision uses various means to ensure sound reputation risk management, including governance practices, 

awareness sessions and its risk management framework. Offi  cers and employees are required to perform their 

duties in accordance with these practices and the organization’s values. 
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MD&A (continued)
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

International Financial Reporting Standards

Starting January 1, 2010, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants will transition Canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles (GAAP) for publicly accountable entities such as Envision to International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS). We will prepare fi nancial statements in accordance with IFRS commencing January 1, 2011, and will 

include comparative 2010 results under IFRS. Even though much of Canadian GAAP is similar to IFRS, the transition 

to IFRS may signifi cantly impact our processes and fi nancial results. Please refer to Note 4 of the consolidated fi nancial 

statements for more information on our transition to IFRS. 

Division of income

($ in thousands)  2009 2008 2007 2006 

Total fi nancial & other income $ 196,401 100.0% $ 212,542 100.0% $ 203,485  100.0% $ 170,875 100.0%

Interest & dividends to members 63,438  32.3% 87,417 41.1% 84,156  41.4% 64,751 37.9%

Salaries & employee benefi ts 56,903 29.0% 52,893 24.9% 49,501 24.3% 41,521 24.3%

Loan provision, borrowing & taxes 9,332 4.8% 18,500  8.7% 19,195 9.4% 15,579 9.1%

Administration 18,275 9.3% 17,953 8.4% 16,899 8.3% 18,343 10.7%

Addition to retained earnings 21,680  11.0% 11,158 5.2% 12,560 6.2% 15,759 9.2%

Occupancy & depreciation 16,305 8.3% 14,696 6.9% 11,664  5.7% 8,986  5.3%

Data processing 10,468  5.3% 9,925 4.7% 9,510 4.7% 5,936 3.5%

MD&A (continued)



management’s responsibility for financial reporting
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The consolidated fi nancial statements of Envision Credit Union have been prepared 

by management in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Institutions 

Act and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in Canada. 

The statements include amounts based on informed judgements and estimates of 

the expected eff ects of current events and transactions.

To meet its responsibility for preparing reliable fi nancial information, management 

maintains and relies on comprehensive internal accounting, operating, and system 

controls. These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the 

fi nancial records are reliable for preparing fi nancial statements and safeguarding 

the assets of the organization.

The fi nancial statements are approved by the Board of Directors. The Audit 

Committee, comprised of fi ve Directors of the Board, has reviewed the statements 

with management and the external auditors in detail. KPMG has been appointed 

by the membership as independent auditors to examine and report on the 

consolidated fi nancial statements. They have had full and free access to the internal 

audit staff  and other management staff  and the Audit Committee of the Board. 

Their report appears herein.

Signed, Signed,

GORD HUSTON THOMAS WEBSTER

President and CEO Chief Financial Offi  cer



auditor’s report to the members
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We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Envision Credit Union 

as at December 31, 2009, and the consolidated statements of income, 

comprehensive income, changes in members’ equity, and cash fl ows for 

the year then ended. These fi nancial statements are the responsibility of 

Envision Credit Union’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these fi nancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance whether the fi nancial statements are free of 

material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements. An audit also 

includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi cant estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated fi nancial statements presented fairly, in all material 

aspects, the fi nancial position of Envision Credit Union as at December 31, 2009, and 

the results of its operations and its cash fl ows for the year then ended in accordance 

with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vancouver, Canada

February 12, 2010



consolidated balance sheet

    2009  2008 

ASSETS

Cash resources (Note 6) $ 70,353 $ 55,343 

Loans (Note 7)  2,772,030  2,680,455

Investments and other (Note 8)  329,187  312,393 

Premises and equipment (Note 9)  33,394  31,770 

   $ 3,204,964 $ 3,079,961 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Deposits (Note 10) $ 2,853,587 $ 2,726,488 

Other (Note 11)  42,373  62,946 

Borrowings (Note 12)  125,449  127,100 

    3,021,409  2,916,534 

MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Class B shares (Note 13)  9,683  10,561 

Retained earnings  168,892  147,212 

Accumulated other comprehensive income  4,980  5,654 

    183,555  163,427 

   $ 3,204,964 $ 3,079,961 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 26)

Subsequent event (Note 29)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

ENVISION CREDIT UNION

December 31 (in thousands of dollars)
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consolidated statement of income

    2009  2008 

Interest income

 Loans $ 113,173 $ 146,384 

 Cash resources and investments  10,725  79 

    123,898  146,463 

Interest expense

 Deposits  63,058  86,921

  Borrowings  2,109  10,273 

    65,167  97,194 

Net interest income  58,731  49,269 

Provision for credit losses (Note 7)  2,500  5,000 

    56,231  44,269

Non-interest income (Note 19)  72,503  67,014 

    128,734  111,283 

Non-interest expenses (Note 20)  102,884  97,496 

Income before the undernoted  25,850  13,787 

Provision for income taxes (Note 21)  3,838  2,131 

NET INCOME $ 22,012 $ 11,655 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

ENVISION CREDIT UNION

Year Ended December 31 (in thousands of dollars)
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consolidated statement of comprehensive income

    2009  2008 

Net income $ 22,012 $ 11,655

Other comprehensive income (loss)

 Unrealized losses on available for sale securities

  (net of income taxes of $6, 2008: $10)  (32)  (59) 

 Unrealized net gains on derivatives designated as cash 

  fl ow hedges (net of income taxes of $437, 2008: $1,928)  2,476  9,819

 Reclassifi cation to net income of (gains) and losses on cash 

  fl ow hedges (net of income taxes of $550, 2008: $106)  (3,118)  496 

Total other comprehensive income (loss)  (674)  10,256 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 21,338 $ 21,911 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

ENVISION CREDIT UNION

Year Ended December 31 (in thousands of dollars)
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consolidated statement of changes in member equity

    2009  2008 

Class B shares $ 9,683 $ 10,561 

Retained earnings

Balance, beginning of year  147,212  136,019 

Net income  22,012  11,655 

Dividends net of related tax savings  (332)  (462) 

Balance, end of year  168,892  147,212 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Balance beginning of year  5,654  (4,602) 

Other comprehensive income (loss)  (674)  10,256 

Balance at end of year  4,980  5,654 

TOTAL MEMBERS’ EQUITY $ 183,555 $ 163,427 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

ENVISION CREDIT UNION

December 31 (in thousands of dollars)
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consolidated statement of cash flows

    2009  2008 

Cash fl ows provided by (used in)

Operating activities

Net income $ 22,012 $ 11,655

Adjustments to determine net cash from 

 (used in) operating activities

 Provision for credit losses  2,500  5,000

 Amortization  8,993  7,455 

 Gain on sale of securitized loans  (226)  (3,509) 

 Future income taxes  195  1,522 

 Change in accrued interest  (12,608)  762 

 Change in receivables and payables  (20,768)  (1,416) 

 Other  20,038  (5,934) 

Cash fl ows from operating activities  20,136  15,535 

Financing activities

 Net change in deposits  139,873  84,126 

  Net change in borrowings  (1,736)  (102,543)

  Redemption of Class B shares, net  (878)  (1,176) 

Cash fl ows from (used in) fi nancing activities  137,259  (19,593) 

Investing activities

 Net change in loans to members  (151,041)  (185,966) 

 Proceeds from loan securitization  56,779  211,254 

 Net increase in investments  (28,636)  (16,879) 

 Purchase of premises and equipment  (4,620)  (3,999) 

 Purchase of leased vehicles  (19,404)  (15,644) 

  Proceeds from disposal of leased vehicles  4,537  2,815 

Cash fl ows used in investing activities  (142,385)  (8,419) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash resources  15,010  (12,477) 

Cash resources, beginning of year  55,343  67,820 

Cash resources, end of year $ 70,353 $ 55,343 

Supplementary cash fl ow information

 Interest paid $ 77,564 $ 98,098 

 Taxes paid  6,413  1,687   

See accompanying notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

ENVISION CREDIT UNION

Year Ended December 31 (in thousands of dollars)
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. GOVERNING LEGISLATION AND OPERATIONS

Envision Credit Union (the “credit union”) is incorporated under the Credit Union Incorporation Act of British Columbia 

and its operations are subject to the Financial Institutions Act of British Columbia. The credit union is approved to 

operate throughout the Province of British Columbia and currently operates in the Lower Mainland, Fraser Valley, 

Kitimat, Smithers and Okanagan areas of the province.

The credit union is an integrated fi nancial institution that provides a wide range of fi nancial products and services that 

comprise one operating business segment.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

These consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles. In preparing the fi nancial statements, in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles, management has made estimates and assumptions that aff ect reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities, revenues and expenses and contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may diff er from these estimates.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated fi nancial statements include the accounts of Envision Credit Union and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, 

Envision Insurance Services Ltd., Envision Investment Services Ltd., CU DealerLink Ltd., Envision Leasing Ltd., 

619547 B.C. Ltd. and 637506 B.C. Ltd. In addition, the credit union owns 80% interest in Simmons, Black & Emsland 

Partnership, 50% interest in inUnison Financial Services Ltd. and, through one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, 

50% interest in Bulkley Valley Insurance Services Ltd., and 50% interest in McBain Insurance Agency Ltd. 

All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Variable interest entities (VIEs) are entities that have insuffi  cient equity and/or their equity investors at risk lack one 

or more of the specifi ed essential characteristics of a controlling fi nancial interest. The credit union is required to 

identify VIEs and determine if the credit union has a signifi cant variable interest and/or is the primary benefi ciary 

of the variable interest. The primary benefi ciary is required to consolidate a VIE.

The credit union has identifi ed that it has a signifi cant variable interest and is the primary benefi ciary of its 65% 

owned subsidiary, inUnison Technology Services Ltd. Consequently, the consolidated fi nancial statements include 

100% of the fi nancial position of this company.

Business combinations, Goodwill and Other intangible assets

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. Identifi able intangible assets are recognized 

separately from Goodwill and are included as Intangible assets in Investments and other. 

ENVISION CREDIT UNION

Year Ended December 31 (in thousands of dollars)
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Goodwill represents the excess of the price paid for acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill 

impairment is assessed on at least an annual basis. Any excess of carrying value over fair value is charged to income 

in the period in which impairment is determined.

Intangible assets with a fi nite life are amortized over their estimated useful lives, not exceeding 10 years, and are 

reviewed for impairment annually.

Cash

Cash resources are comprised of cash held as well as short term investments with maturities of less than 90 days from 

the date of acquisition.

Financial instruments

All fi nancial instruments are required to be classifi ed as one of the following: held for trading (“HFT”), held to maturity 

(“HTM”), loans and receivables, available for sale (“AFS”) or other fi nancial liabilities. All fi nancial instruments are 

measured at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently accounted for based on their classifi cation. Fair values 

are based on quoted market prices where available from active markets; otherwise fair values are estimated using 

a variety of valuation techniques. 

The amortized cost of a fi nancial asset or liability is the amount at which the fi nancial asset or liability is measured 

at initial recognition, less principal payments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization of any diff erence between 

the initial amount recognized and the maturity amount, less any reduction for impairment. 

Measurement in subsequent periods depends on whether the fi nancial instrument has been classifi ed as HFT, HTM, 

AFS, loans and receivables or other fi nancial liabilities. Management determines the classifi cation of fi nancial assets 

and liabilities at initial recognition and the designations made for each fi nancial instrument are indicated in the notes. 

A description of the various designation classifi cations follows:

Held for trading

Financial instruments are classifi ed under this category if they are:

i. acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term;

ii. part of a portfolio of identifi ed fi nancial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence 

 of a recent actual pattern of short-term profi t-taking;

iii. a derivative, except for a derivative that is a fi nancial guarantee contract or a designated eff ective hedging

 instrument; or

iv. designated at fair value using the fair value option “FVO”.

Financial instruments cannot be transferred into or out of this category after inception. For designation using the FVO 

fair values must be readily available. Gains and losses realized on disposal and unrealized gains and losses from market 

fl uctuations are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Held to maturity

HTM investments are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable payments that the credit union’s 

management has the intention and ability to hold until maturity. The fi nancial assets are accounted for at 

amortized cost. The credit union has designated certain investments as HTM.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)



Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable repayment dates, usually with 

interest, that are not debt securities or instruments designated as held for trading at initial recognition. The eff ective 

interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a fi nancial asset or fi nancial liability and of allocating 

the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The eff ective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of a fi nancial instrument, or where 

appropriate a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the fi nancial asset or fi nancial liability.

Available for sale

AFS fi nancial assets are those non-derivative fi nancial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not 

classifi ed into any of the other classifi cations described above. AFS instruments are carried at fair value whereby the 

unrealized gains and losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive income until either sale or identifi cation 

of other than temporary impairment, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is transferred to the Consolidated 

Statement of Income. AFS equity instruments that do not have quoted values in active markets are carried at cost. 

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are non-derivative fi nancial liabilities and are recorded at amortized cost, using the eff ective 

interest method. The credit union has designated certain fi nancial liabilities as HFT. 

Loans

Loans are measured at amortized cost using the eff ective interest method net of an allowance for credit losses. 

Interest income from loans is recorded on the accrual basis, except for loans that are considered to be impaired. 

A loan is classifi ed as impaired when, in management’s opinion, there is reasonable doubt as to the ultimate 

collectability, either in whole or in part, of principal and interest. Loans where interest or principal is contractually 

past due 90 days are automatically recognized as impaired, unless management determines there is no reasonable 

doubt as to the ultimate collectability of principal and interest. All loans are classifi ed as impaired when interest or 

principal is past due 180 days. When a loan is classifi ed as impaired, recognition of interest in accordance with the term 

of the original loan agreement ceases. Subsequent payments (interest or principal) received on an impaired loan are 

recorded as a reduction in principal. Loans are generally returned to accrual status when the timely collection of both 

principal and interest is reasonably assured and all delinquent principal and interest payments are brought current.

Loan origination fees are considered to be considered adjustments to loan yield and are deferred and amortized 

to interest income over the term of the loan. Commitment fees are treated on the same basis if there is a reasonable 

expectation that the commitment will be called upon and will result in a loan; otherwise, the fees are deferred and 

amortized to non-interest income over the term of the commitment. Mortgage prepayment fees are recognized 

in non-interest income, unless they relate to a minor modifi cation to the terms of the mortgage, in which case the fees 

are recognized over the remaining term of the original mortgage using the eff ective interest rate method. Other fees 

and commissions are recognized as the services are performed.

55

E
N

V
IS

IO
N

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
0

9

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)



Allowance for credit losses

The credit union maintains specifi c and general allowances for credit losses in its portfolio of both on and off  balance 

sheet items at a level that management considers adequate to provide for credit-related losses. The allowance is 

increased by a provision for loan impairment charged to income and reduced by write-off s during the year.

A specifi c allowance is established on an individual loan basis to reduce the carrying value of the loan’s estimated 

net realizable amount. The estimated net realizable amounts are determined by either discounting the expected 

future cash fl ows or by reference to market prices for the loans or their underlying security, net of estimated costs 

of realization.

The credit union also maintains a general allowance to absorb credit losses that management estimates have 

occurred at the balance sheet date for which specifi c allowances cannot yet be determined. The credit union 

applies a methodology that incorporates loan loss history as the basis for estimating probability of default and 

changes in current economic conditions. 

Transfers of loan receivables

Transfers of loan receivables to unrelated parties are treated as sales provided that control over the transferred loans 

has been surrendered and consideration other than benefi cial interests in the transferred loans has been received 

in exchange. If these criteria are not satisfi ed, then the transfers are treated as fi nancing transactions. If treated as sales, 

the loans are removed from the Consolidated Balance Sheet, and a gain or loss is recognized in Non-interest income 

based on the carrying value of the loans transferred, allocated between the assets sold and the retained interests 

in proportion to their fair values at the date of the transfer. The fair values of loans sold and retained interests are 

determined using valuation models which take into account management’s best estimates of key assumptions such 

as expected losses, prepayments and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved. 

The credit union classifi es its retained interests in securitizations as available for sale.

Where the credit union continues to service the loan receivables sold, a servicing liability is recognized and amortized 

over the servicing period as servicing fee revenue. These retained interests are recorded at their fair value at the time 

of sale and are periodically revalued with changes in fair value fl owing through other comprehensive income and 

changes in estimates fl owing through net income. The carrying value of the retained interests is reviewed annually 

for impairment and adjusted as required.

Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

Derivative fi nancial instruments are fi nancial contracts that are utilized to manage fi nancial risks such as changes 

in interest rates and other fi nancial indices. In the ordinary course of business, the credit union uses derivative 

fi nancial instruments, primarily interest rate swaps, to manage interest rate exposure. Options are used to manage 

the risks of changes in fair value of equity-linked deposit contracts with members. 

Derivatives are carried at fair value, and are reported as assets when they have a positive fair value and liabilities when 

they have a negative fair value. Non-hedging derivative instruments used in trading activities are marked to market 

and the resulting realized or unrealized gains or losses are recognized in Non-interest income in the Consolidated 

Statement of Income in the current period. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)



Interest rate swaps are used economically for hedging activities of groups of on-balance sheet assets or liabilities, 

and have been designated as cash fl ow hedges. Each hedge is documented at inception detailing the particular risk 

management objective and the strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction. The documentation identifi es 

the group of assets or liabilities being hedged, the risk that is being hedged, the type of derivative used and how 

eff ectiveness will be measured. The credit union formally assesses, retrospectively at the hedge’s inception, and 

prospectively on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly eff ective 

in off setting changes in fair values of cash fl ows attributed to hedged risks. Hedges are designated as either fair 

value or cash fl ow hedges. 

In a cash fl ow hedging relationship, the eff ective portion of changes in fair value of the derivative is recognized 

in Other comprehensive income. The ineff ective portion is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income. 

The amounts recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income are reclassifi ed to Net income in the same 

period that the hedged cash fl ows aff ect net income.

In a fair value hedge, the change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is recorded on 

the Consolidated Statement of Income. This change in fair value of the hedged item, to the extent that the hedging 

relationship is eff ective, is off set by changes in the fair value of the hedging derivative.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, 

any cumulative gain or loss existing in accumulated other comprehensive income at that time remains in other 

comprehensive income and is either amortized into the Consolidated Statement of Income over the remaining term 

of the original hedge or immediately when the hedged item is derecognized.

Investments and other

Leased vehicles are recorded at cost less amortization and adjusted for any impairment losses. Amortization is 

calculated using the straight-line method over the lease term. Lease income is recorded on the accrual basis. 

Premises and equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings, furniture and equipment and leasehold improvements are carried at cost less 

accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the 

assets as follows:

 Buildings 25 - 40 years

 Equipment and furniture  3 - 5 years

 Leasehold improvements Lease term

Gains on disposals are recorded in Non-interest income in the Consolidated Statement of Income in the year of 

disposal. When premises and equipment are no longer in use or considered impaired, they are written down to their 

net realizable amount. 

Dividends 

Dividends on equity shares less related income tax deductions are charged against retained earnings in the year that 

they are declared.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)



Funds under administration

Funds under administration by the credit union comprise loans that have been securitized and sold, funds that are 

administered in the capacity as custodian and investment portfolios under management including **mutual fund 

accounts managed on behalf of members. Funds under administration are kept separate from credit union assets 

and are not refl ected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Income taxes

The credit union uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability 

method, future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to diff erences 

between the fi nancial statements carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. 

Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply 

to taxable income in the years in which those temporary diff erences are expected to be recovered or settled. The eff ect 

on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the date 

of enactment or substantive enactment.

Net future income tax assets and liabilities are included in investment and other assets or other liabilities, as applicable.

Employee benefi t plans

The credit union accrues its obligations under the employee pension plan and sick leave benefi t plan and the 

related costs, net of plan assets and has adopted the following policies:

 the costs of pension and sick leave benefi ts earned by employees are actuarially determined using the projected   

 benefi t method prorated on service and management’s best estimate of expected plan investment performance,   

 salary escalation and retirement ages of employees and expected health care costs.

Comparative fi gures

Certain comparative fi gures for 2008 have been reclassifi ed to conform with the current year’s presentation.

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICES

a)  Eff ective January 1, 2009, the credit union adopted the Emerging Issues Committee (EIC) Abstract EIC-173, 

 Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The abstract clarifi es how the inclusion 

 of credit risk should be taken into account in determining the fair value of fi nancial assets, fi nancial liabilities 

 and derivatives. Adoption of this guidance is applied retrospectively without restatement of prior periods. For the   

 year ended December 31, 2009, the revaluation of fi nancial assets and liabilities did not have a material eff ect on   

 Net Income and Other Comprehensive Income. In addition, the adjustment to the January 1, 2009 opening balances  

 for retrospective application of impacts prior to 2009 had no material eff ect on either opening Retained Earnings   

 and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.

b)  Eff ective January 1, 2009, the credit union adopted the CICA Handbook Section 3064, Goodwill and 

 Intangible Assets. This Section establishes revised standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation 

 and disclosure of intangible assets and goodwill. The adoption of the standard did not have a material eff ect 

 on the Credit Union’s consolidated fi nancial statements. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)



c) Eff ective January 1, 2009, the credit union adopted the amendments to Section 3862, Financial 

 Instruments - Disclosures. The amendments to this standard require enhanced disclosures over fair value 

 measurements of fi nancial instruments and liquidity risks. The additional fair value measurement disclosures 

 require the categorization of fair value measurements into one of three levels, ranging from fair value 

 measurements obtained from quoted market prices in active markets to fair value measurement based on 

 inputs that are not obtained from observable sources. The additional disclosures over liquidity risks require 

 greater clarifi cation over the application of liquidity risk as well as the maturity analysis of derivative 

 fi nancial liabilities.

 4. FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES 

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) confi rmed that the changeover to IFRS from 

Canadian GAAP will be required for publicly accountable enterprises for interim and annual fi nancial statements 

eff ective for fi scal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, including comparatives for 2010. The objective is to 

improve fi nancial reporting by having one single set of accounting standards that are comparable with other entities 

on an international basis. The credit union will provide consolidated fi nancial statements in accordance with IFRS for 

the fi scal year ending December 31, 2011, including comparative fi gures for 2010.

In order to meet the transition requirements, management has developed a project plan that is arranged according 

to the following phases:

• Impact assessment of IFRS.

• Requirements gathering, detailed review of IFRS and adoption planning.

• Development of IFRS policies

• Training and communication.

The credit union is on schedule with its IFRS transition plan, having completed the requirements gathering and 

detailed planning phase of the project. Preliminary accounting policy choices and elections based on current 

standards issued by the IASB have been made, and work is underway to develop the related accounting policies. 

The credit union is currently evaluating the impact of the transition to IFRS on its consolidated fi nancial statements.

5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The credit union is regulated under the Financial Institutions Act of British Columbia (“the Act”) and is required to 

maintain a capital level at a minimum of 8% of risk-weighted assets. The credit union has exceeded its minimum 

regulatory capital requirement at December 31, 2009. 
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3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICES (continued)



When determining the suffi  ciency of capital, the Credit Union includes in its calculation amounts permitted by the 

Act including:

• Retained earnings

• Equity shares

• System capital

• Other forms of capital as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors and approved as capital 

 by the regulatory authority

Total value of the fi gures above are the reduced by:

• Goodwill and other intangible assets

• Investments with banks/trusts and other

• Securitization deferred payment accounts

The credit union management ensures compliance with capital adequacy through the following:

• identifying the capital needed to support the current and planned operations of the credit union, including   

 operations conducted or to be conducted through subsidiaries;

• developing and submitting to the Board of Directors for its consideration and approval appropriate and prudent   

 capital management policies, including policies on the quantity and quality of capital needed to support the   

 current and planned operations that refl ect both the risks to which the credit union is exposed and its regulatory   

 capital requirements;

• regularly measuring and monitoring capital requirements and capital position, and ensuring the credit union   

 meets and will continue to meet its capital requirements;

• managing the capital in accordance with the capital management policies;

• establishing appropriate and eff ective procedures and controls for managing the capital, monitoring adherence 

 to those procedures and controls, and reviewing them on a regular basis to ensure that they remain eff ective;

• providing the Board of Directors with appropriate reports on the capital position and on the procedures and   

 controls for managing the capital; and providing the Board of Directors with appropriate reports that will enable 

 it to assess whether the institution has an ongoing eff ective capital management process.

Stress testing of the capital level is performed at minimum on an annual basis. The tests include a variety of scenarios 

that vary the growth and income assumptions. They include a test for the current year as well as for the plan period. 

A suffi  cient number of scenarios are performed to ensure that sensitivity levels can be reasonably assessed and 

planned for.

A fi ve year capital plan is reviewed and approved by the Board annually.

Distributions of capital, such as share dividends, are only made after targets in the capital plan have been met. 

Each distribution must be approved by the Board of Directors.

The Investment & Loan Committee (“ILC”) is responsible for developing and conducting an annual review of capital 

management procedures in place relative to the policy requirements established. The ILC reports its fi ndings and 

recommends any corrective actions to the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors, which may be assisted by the ILC, 

reviews written correspondence from the Financial Institutions Commission (“FICOM”) regarding capital management 

matters, and investigates and responds as appropriate.
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5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)



Total capital has been calculated as follows: 

    2009  2008 

Equity shares $ 16,239 $ 17,018

Retained earnings  175,772  150,781

System capital  19,642  16,921

Other   979  1,321

Goodwill and other intangible assets  (11,037)  (6,288)

Investments with banks/trusts and other  (305)  (305)

Securitization deferred payment accounts  (1,894)  (6,335) 

TOTAL CAPITAL $ 199,396 $ 173,113 

6. CASH RESOURCES
 

    2009  2008 

Cash and current accounts $ 24,824 $ 24,697

Term deposits and accrued interest  45,529  30,646 

   $ 70,353 $ 55,343  

 

7. LOANS

    2009  2008 

Residential mortgages $ 1,656,592 $ 1,544,342

Personal loans  188,667  185,107

Personal lines of credit  252,255  267,272

Commercial mortgages  584,546  581,316

Commercial loans  54,322  69,369

Commercial lines of credit  43,487  42,070

Accrued interest  4,044  4,457 

    2,783,913  2,693,933 

Allowance for credit losses

 Specifi c  (1,593)  (2,630)

 General  (10,290)  (10,848) 

    (11,883)  (13,478) 

   $ 2,772,030 $ 2,680,455 
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5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)



Allowance for credit losses  2009 2008

    Beginning  Provision  Write-off s  Ending  Ending

    balance      balance  balance 

Residential mortgages $ 2,761 $ — $ (5) $ 2,756 $ 2,761

Personal loans  1,957  1,200  (1,703)  1,454  1,957

Personal lines of credit  2,200  500  (789)  1,911  2,200

Commercial mortgages  3,084  —  —  3,084  3,084

Commercial loans  2,290  800  (1,577)  1,513  2,290

Commercial lines of credit  1,186  —  (21)  1,165  1,186 

   $ 13,478 $ 2,500 $ (4,095) $ 11,883 $ 13,478 

Percentage of total loans and accrued interest        0.43%  0.50% 

Impaired loans and related allowances 2009 2008

      Loan  Specifi c  Carrying  Carrying

      balances  allowances  amount  amount 

Personal loans

 Residential mortgages   $ 1,984 $ — $ 1,984 $ 3,253

 Loans and lines of credit    1,628  750  878  793

Commercial loans

 Commercial mortgages    77  —  77  6,903

 Commercial loans and lines of credit    910  843  67  80 

     $ 4,599 $ 1,593 $ 3,006 $ 11,029 

Concentrations of credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk exist if a number of borrowers are engaged in similar economic activities or are 

located in the same geographic region, and indicate the relative sensitivity of the credit union’s performance to 

developments aff ecting a particular segment of borrowers or geographic region.

Geographic credit risk exists for the credit union due to its primary service area being the Fraser Valley of 

British Columbia and the surrounding areas. To reduce the impact of the geographic credit risk the credit union 

has 21% of its residential mortgages insured against credit loss. 
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7. LOANS (continued)



8. INVESTMENTS AND OTHER

    2009  2008 

Investments

 Shares

 Central 1 Credit Union $ 7,634 $ 8,148

 Credential Securities  105  105

 Other  3,071  2,451

Term deposits callable or maturing in three months or more  229,938  208,133

Leased vehicles (net of accumulated amortization of $9,408 (2008: $6,665) 34,945  26,075

Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses  35,525  42,366

Derivative instruments  3,219  17,090

Intangible assets  3,455  1,461

Goodwill  11,295  6,564 

   $ 329,187 $ 312,393 

Investment in shares of Central 1 Credit Union is required by governing legislation and as a condition of membership 

in Central 1 Credit Union, are classifi ed as available for sale and recorded at cost as there is no active market for 

these shares.

Amortization in respect to leased vehicles amounted to $5,963 (2008: $4,682).

9. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
 

        2009  2008 

      Accumulated  Net book  Net book

    Cost  amortization  value  value 

Land  $ 4,388 $ — $ 4,388 $ 4,384

Buildings  20,494  6,659  13,835  14,229

Leasehold improvements  14,274  5,907  8,367  7,712

Equipment and furniture  40,218  33,414  6,804  5,445 

   $ 79,374 $ 45,980 $ 33,394 $ 31,770 

Amortization in respect of the above, buildings, leasehold improvements and furniture and equipment amounted to 

$3,030 (2008: $2,773).
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10. DEPOSITS

    2009  2008 

Demand $ 696,297 $ 619,599

Term   1,753,333  1,688,021

Registered savings plans  377,134  379,569

Class “A” shares  6,175  5,877

Accrued interest and dividends  20,648  33,422 

   $ 2,853,587 $ 2,726,488 

Credit Union Deposit Insurance Corporation (CUDIC) guarantees all credit union deposits.

Under agreements with trustees of the registered savings plans, members’ contributions to the plans are deposited 

with the credit union at rates of interest determined by the credit union.

Class “A” shares are membership preferred and redeemable, and accordingly classifi ed as deposits. An unlimited 

number of Class “A” voting shares are authorized with a par value of $1. 

11. OTHER LIABILITIES

    2009  2008 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 31,549 $ 41,876

Derivative instruments  6,187  17,556

Deferred revenue  2,445  2,739

Non-controlling interest in subsidiary  1,222  —

Future income taxes (Note 21)  970  775 

   $ 42,373 $ 62,946  

12. BORROWINGS

    2009  2008 

Money market loan $ 125,000 $ 75,000

Other revolving facilities  —  51,736

Accrued interest  449  364 

   $ 125,449 $ 127,100  

Security provided on the money market loan is an assignment of loans to members, accounts receivable and a 

demand debenture to the lender.

The credit union has three approved lines of credit totaling $450 million. Security for the fi rst line of credit is as 

noted above. For the second line of credit, security is provided by a fi rst charge against specifi c CMHC insured 

realty mortgages to a maximum of 110% of the approved credit facility. For the third line of credit, security is provided 

by a fi rst charge against specifi c insured realty mortgages to a maximum of 110% of the outstanding balance.

These facilities bear interest at Bankers’ Acceptance (BAs) rates.
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13. EQUITY SHARES

The credit union has authorized Class “B”, “D” and “E” equity shares, which have a par value and redemption value 

of $1 each. 

The rules of the credit union state that the annual redemption of class “B” shares may, at the discretion of the Board 

of Directors, be limited to 10% of the total issued and outstanding shares.

Class “D” and “E” shares shall be entitled to dividends at such rate, payable at such time or times and either 

cumulative or non-cumulative, as the Board of Directors, in their discretion may determine before the fi rst issue 

of the class of shares. 

The Board of Directors may, at their discretion, determine by resolution before any fi rst issue of class of “D” or “E” shares, 

any additional rights and restrictions to be attached to the class of shares. 

Class “B”, “D” and “E” equity shares are not guaranteed by CUDIC. 

The credit union has issued:

    2009  2008 

Class “B” non-voting investment equity shares, 

 unlimited number authorized $ 9,683 $ 10,561 

14. INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

Interest rate risk is the sensitivity of Envision’s fi nancial position to movements in interest rates. The carrying amounts 

of interest sensitive assets and liabilities and the notional amount of swaps and other derivative fi nancial instruments 

used to manage interest rate risk are presented below in the periods in which they next reprice to market rates and are 

summed to show the interest rate sensitivity gap.

December 31, 2009

                                                                       Within 3 months 4 - 12 months Over 1 year Not interest

 Principal Rate Principal Rate Principal Rate sensitive Total 

Assets

 Cash resources $ 45,500 0.68% $ —  — % $ — — % $ 24,853 $ 70,353

 Loans  1,410,726 3.17%  223,939 4.67%  1,133,322 5.29%  4,043  2,772,030

 Other  —  — %  65,198 1.28%  169,023 3.86%  128,360  362,581 

  1,456,226 3.09%  289,137 3.91%  1,302,345 5.11%  157,256  3,204,964 

Liabilities

 Member deposits  1,005,638 1.02%  615,327 1.62%  970,889 4.08%  261,733  2,853,587

 Borrowings and other  125,000 0.80%  — — %  — — %  42,822  167,822 

  1,130,638 0.99%  615,327 1.62%  970,889 4.08%  304,555  3,021,409 

Balance sheet mismatch  325,588   (326,190)   331,456   (147,299)  183,555 

Derivatives, notional value

 Asset  550,000 0.43%  25,000 4.88%  170,000 2.37%  —  745,000

 Liability  (195,000) 0.43%  —  — %  (550,000) 2.24%  —  (745,000) 

NET MISMATCH $ 680,588  $ (301,190)  $ (48,544)  $ (147,299) $ 183,555 
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December 31, 2008

                                                                       Within 3 months 4 - 12 months Over 1 year Not interest

 Principal Rate Principal Rate Principal Rate sensitive Total 

Assets 

 Cash resources $ 30,638 1.40% $ — — % $ — — % $ 23,222 $ 53,860

 Loans  1,430,204 4.10%  177,795 5.27%  1,068,000 5.58%  4,456  2,680,455

 Other  — — %  21,698 4.33%  190,570 4.10%  133,378  345,646 

  1,460,842 4.04%  199,493 5.06%  1,258,570 5.36%  161,056  3,079,961 

Liabilities

 Member deposits  972,664 2.23%  940,397 3.62%  567,267 5.30%  246,160  2,726,488

 Borrowings and other  126,736 2.61%  — — %  — — %  63,310  190,046 

  1,099,400 2.27%  940,397 3.62%  567,267 5.30%  309,470  2,916,534 

Balance sheet mismatch  361,442   (740,904)   691,303   (148,414)  163,427 

Derivatives, notional value

 Asset  385,000 2.90%  55,000 4.85%  210,000 4.99%  —  650,000 

 Liability  (350,000) 2.65%  (15,000) 4.42%  (285,000) 3.59%  —  (650,000) 

NET MISMATCH $ 396,442  $ (700,904)  $ 616,303  $ (148,414) $ 163,427 

15. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of fi nancial instruments by classifi cation is as follows:

    2009  2008 

Loans and receivables $ 2,784,335 $ 2,686,646

Held-to-maturity  275,464  238,779

Available-for-sale  9,920  9,795

Held-for-trading  21,856  24,230

Other fi nancial liabilities  3,006,373  2,889,373 

16. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents approximate fair values of Envision’s fi nancial instruments, including derivatives. The fair 

values of fi nancial assets and liabilities with fi xed interest rates have been determined using discounted cash fl ow 

techniques based on interest rates being off ered for similar types of assets and liabilities with similar terms and risks as 

at the balance sheet date. Fair values of other fi nancial assets and liabilities are assumed to approximate their carrying 

value, principally due to their short term nature. Fair values of derivative fi nancial instruments have been based on 

market price quotations.
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14. INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY (continued)



These fair values, presented for information only, refl ect conditions that existed only at the balance sheet date.

 2009 2008

 Book Value Fair Value Diff erence Book Value Fair Value Diff erence 

Assets

 Cash resources $ 70,000 $ 71,000 $ 1,000 $ 54,000 $ 55,000 $ 1,000

 Loans  2,772,000  2,810,000  38,000  2,860,000  2,860,000  —

 Investments  234,000  243,000  9,000  216,000  231,000  15,000

 Other  95,000  95,000  —  72,000  72,000  — 

        48,000      16,000 

Liabilities

 Deposits  2,854,000  2,869,000  (15,000)  2,726,000  2,750,000  (24,000)

 Borrowing  125,000  125,000  —  127,000  127,000  —

 Other  41,000  41,000  —  63,000  63,000  — 

        (15,000)      (24,000) 

Derivative contracts  (3,000)  (3,000)  —  —  —  —

Fair value diff erence     $ 33,000     $ (8,000) 

The fair value measurements are analyzed according to a fair value hierarchy with three levels as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either    

  directly or indirectly;

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized shall be determined on 

the basis of the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

No transfer has been made into or out of Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

Financial assets at fair value

December 31, 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets

Derivative Financial Instruments

 Interest Rate Swaps — 981 — 981

 Equity linked options — 230 — 230

Financial investments available for sale

 Retained interests in securitizations — — 9,573 9,573

Financial Liabilities

Derivative Financial Instruments

 Interest Rate Swaps — 4,235 — 4,235 
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16. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)



The following table reconciles the credit union’s Level 3 fair value measurements from December 31, 2008 to 

December 31, 2009:

Fair value measurements using Level 3 inputs

Balance as at December 31, 2008 $ 15,116

Gain (loss) included in net income or OCI  3,311 

Purchases  (2,866)

Settlements  (5,988)

Transfers in (out)

Balance as at December 31, 2009  9,573 

17. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Credit Union is exposed to the following risks as a result of holding fi nancial instruments: credit risk, market risk, 

and liquidity risk. The following is a description of those risks and how the Credit Union manages them. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a fi nancial loss will be incurred due to the failure of a counterparty to discharge its contractual 

commitment or obligation to the Credit Union. Credit Risk arises principally in lending activities that result in loans to 

members as described in Note 7; but also from interest rate swaps (derivatives).

Concentration of credit risk may arise when the ability of a number of borrowers or counterparties to meet their 

contractual obligations are similarly aff ected by external factors. Examples of concentration risk would include 

geographic and industry factors. 

Risk measurement

Credit risk is managed in accordance with our lending policy approved by the Board of Directors. Risk limits and credit 

authorities are delegated to the Credit Risk Committee, comprised of executive and senior credit management staff , 

which in turn delegate appropriate limits to lending staff . Credit exposures in excess of certain levels require approval 

from the Credit Risk Committee. 

The Investment and Loan Committee (ILC) meets quarterly to review; portfolio credit quality; industry and member 

concentrations; and adequacy of loan provisions. Policies relating to single member limits and industry and geographic 

concentration are approved by the Board. 

The credit union’s Credit Department reviews and adjudicates credit risk outside of branch managers’ delegated 

lending limits and reviews branch credit decisions to ensure compliance to policy. The Credit Department may 

approve credits not meeting our lending guidelines on an exception basis with appropriate risk mitigation and 

reward considerations.

Loan exposures are managed and monitored through facility limits for individual borrowers, credit type, industry 

exposure and a credit review process. These reviews ensure the borrower complies with internal policy and 

underwriting standards. The credit union relies on collateral security typically in the form of a fi xed and fl oating 

charge over the assets of its borrowers. Credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability 

of members to meet interest and principal repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits 

where appropriate. Credit risk for our counterparties in other fi nancial instruments, such as investments 

and derivatives, is assessed through published credit ratings.
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16. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)



Maximum exposure to credit risk

The credit union’s exposure to credit risk is comprised of loans and derivatives. For these fi nancial assets recognized 

on the balance sheet, the exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For loan commitments and other 

credit-related commitments that are irrevocable, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the 

committed facilities.

    2009  2008 

On balance sheet exposure

Loans and accrued interest $ 2,783,913 $ 2,693,933

Derivatives (net)  —  1,017 

    2,783,913  2,694,950 

Off  balance sheet exposure

Letters of credit  18,697  26,607

Commitments to extend credit  9,005  26,985

Unadvanced loans  467,133  643,846 

    494,835  697,438 

MAXIMUM EXPOSURE $ 3,278,748 $ 3,392,388 

Collateral and other credit enhancements

It is our lending policy to assess the customer’s capacity to repay, rather than rely excessively on the underlying 

collateral security. Depending on the customer’s standing and the type of product, facilities may be unsecured. 

Nevertheless, collateral can be an important mitigant of credit risk.

The credit union does not disclose the fair value of collateral held as security or other credit enhancements on either 

loans past due but not impaired or individually impaired loans, as it is not practical to do so.

Credit quality of fi nancial assets neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 

the categories below, on which the following information is based:

    2009  2008 

Satisfactory risk $ 2,687,215 $ 2,568,604

Special mention  29,924  44,548 

   $ 2,717,139 $ 2,613,152  

Satisfactory risk includes commercial facilities demonstrating fi nancial conditions, risk factors and the capacity to 

repay ranging from satisfactory to excellent and retail facilities that are maintained within and outside of generally 

applicable product parameters without being impaired.

Special mention includes facilities that require varying degrees of special attention due to terms and conditions of 

credit that are not met.

Information in respect of geographic concentrations is included in Note 7.
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17. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)



Loans past due but not impaired

Examples of exposures considered past due but not impaired include loans that have missed the most recent payment 

date but on which there is no evidence of impairment; and loans fully secured by cash collateral. Loans past due 

greater than 60 days are included on the watch list.

The aging analysis below includes past due loans on which a general allowance has been assessed, though at their 

early stage of arrears, there is normally no identifi able impairment. 

    2009  2008 

Past due up to 29 days $ 47,809 $ 52,679

Past due 30 - 59 days  7,234  8,510

Past due greater than 60 days  7,132  9,298 

   $ 62,175 $ 70,487  

Impaired fi nancial assets

When impairment losses occur, we reduce the carrying amount of the loan by the loss amount through the use of 

a specifi c allowance account.

Individual accounts are treated as impaired when they are past due over 90 days, or earlier if there is objective 

evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred.

Loans that were impaired amounted to $4,599 as at December 31, 2009 ($13,659 as at December 31, 2008).

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because of changes 

in interest rates. 

Interest rate risk arises when the values of assets and liabilities do not change by the same amount when interest 

rates change. Where portfolios are matched in terms of maturities, interest rate risk is reduced. This category also 

includes yield curve risk, basis risk and interest rate path risk.

The primary objectives of the credit union’s market risk management process include: maximize earnings and return 

on capital within acceptable and controllable levels of the above risks; provide for growth that is sound, profi table and 

balanced without sacrifi cing the quality of service; and manage and maintain a policy and procedures that are 

consistent with the short and long term strategic goals of the Board of Directors.

Interest rate risk

Risk measurement

The Credit Unions’ risk position is measured based upon the potential impact of changes in market conditions. 

The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) is a committee comprised of senior management that meets at least quarterly 

and adhoc as required. Responsibilities include:
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17. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)



• Approval and review of pricing, investment, liquidity, derivative, foreign exchange and asset-liability policies.

• Review of deviations between actual performance and projected plans.

• Review of the management of interest rate sensitivity and fi nancial margin including investing, liquidity 

 management, hedging and securitization activities.

• Approval of Asset-Liability and hedging strategies to manage interest rate risk in order to achieve policies.

• Evaluation of the current interest rate risk position and the potential eff ect on its ALM strategy.

• Review and monitoring of key risk modeling assumptions.

The Credit Union utilizes earnings tests to produce monthly forecasts of net interest income for the upcoming 

12 months based on:

 (a) the current balance sheet structure;

 (b) scheduled maturity and re-pricing of the balance sheet;

 (c) several hundred randomly generated interest rate paths composed around a base rate(s) forecast;

 (d) a volatility % of randomly generated key rates; and

 (e) assumptions regarding customer behaviour and balance sheet growth.

Growth assumptions are based on business plans. Customer behaviour assumptions to assess embedded options 

in deposit and loan portfolios are based on analysis of trend information and management judgment.

The credit union will assess the results of the monthly forecast simulations. The maximum allowable risk exposure 

will be as follows:

Earnings at risk

A reduction in fi nancial margin over the next 12 months of an amount not to exceed 10% of the next 12 months 

fi nancial margin resulting from a 2 standard deviation change in current interest rates held constant.

Duration of equity

Duration of equity: The eff ective duration of equity is defi ned as the percentage change in the market value of equity 

(including retained earnings, equity shares and derivatives) given a 1% range change in interest rates. The 1% change 

will consist of a 50bp shock up and a 50 bp shock down. Given this 1% change, the eff ective duration of equity will not 

exceed a maximum of 10%.

The following table shows the results of these forecast simulations as at December 31, 2009:

 Policy Limit 2009 Impact

1. Earnings at risk 10% 0.8% $   758 

2. Duration of equity +/- 10% 2.3%

As at December 31, 2009, the credit union was within policy limits.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to fund assets with the appropriate duration and cost, as well as the risk of not 

being able to meet unexpected cash needs.
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17. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)



The liquidity risk policy of the credit union is that liquidity is managed on both an operational and strategic level on a 

total company basis. The desired liquidity level above the statutory requirement, is determined by taking into account 

the balance between the cost of liquidity and the yield achieved. Contingency liquidity is managed by having a plan in 

place that can be invoked very quickly as well as having a diversity of funding sources arranged that can be accessed 

when needed. The credit union will at all times maintain statutory liquidity levels as required by regulations. Immediate 

corrective action will be taken if the ratio approaches the regulatory minimum. The liquidity deposits must be held on 

deposit with the Central 1 Credit Union as per the credit union’s Deposit-Loan Agreement. The statutory liquidity 

ratio is 8.0% of deposits and borrowings as at the reporting date. Based on total deposits and borrowings as at 

December 31, 2009 the statutory liquidity requirement exceeds minimum requirements by $60.3 million.

18. FUNDS UNDER ADMINISTRATION
 

    2009  2008 

Sold loans $ 407,428 $ 731,505

Mutual funds  582,465  491,652

Other   98,907  94,349 

   $ 1,088,800 $ 1,317,506  

The Credit Union securitizes mortgages through the creation of mortgage pools. The net gain on sale of the mortgages 

resulting from these securitizations is recognized in the Statement of Income. The weighted average assumptions used 

to measure fair value at the dates of securitization were as follows: 

 2009 2008

 Residential Commercial  Residential Commercial 

Prepayment rate (average) 20.0% N/A 20.0% 10.0%

Excess spread (average) 0.48% N/A 0.72% 0.00%

Discount rate (average) 4.15% N/A 4.52% 5.67%

Average life (years) 2.6 N/A 2.8 2.7

The following table summarizes the credit union’s sales during the year.

    2009  2008 

    Residential  Residential 

Net cash proceeds $ 56,566 $ 178,451

Retained rights to cash reserves  —  —

Retained rights to excess interest  775  6,779

Retained servicing liability  (383)  (2,259)

Accrued interest  (179)  (1,196) 

    56,779  181,775 

Mortgages securitized  56,553  178,266 

NET GAIN ON SALE $ 226 $ 3,509 
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17. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)



    2009  2008

    Commercial  Commercial 

Net cash proceeds $ — $ 32,803

Retained rights to cash reserves  —  —

Retained rights to excess interest  —  —

Retained servicing liability  —  — 

Accrued interest  —  (83) 

    —  32,720

Mortgages securitized  —  32,720 

NET GAIN ON SALE $ — $ — 

19. NONINTEREST INCOME
 

    2009  2008 

Insurance commissions and fees $ 15,736 $ 13,159

Securitization  11,423  14,840

Leasing revenue  8,682  5,818

Account service fees  8,556  8,379

IT services  7,905  8,085

Loan administration fees  6,910  4,994

Fees from fi duciary activities and mutual funds  6,003  6,158

Other   5,668  3,726

Foreign exchange  1,620  1,855 

   $ 72,503 $ 67,014 

20. NONINTEREST EXPENSES
 

    2009  2008 

Salaries and benefi ts (Note 23) $ 56,903 $ 53,813

Administration  18,275  17,966

Data processing  10,468  9,925

Amortization  8,993  7,455

Occupancy  7,312  7,241

Corporate capital tax  933  1,096 

   $ 102,884 $ 97,496 
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18. FUNDS UNDER ADMINISTRATION (continued)



21. PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
 

    2009  2008 

Current income taxes $ 3,940 $ 1,609

Future income taxes  (102)  556 

   $ 3,838 $ 2,165 

Income tax expense diff ers from the amount that would be computed by applying the federal and provincial statutory 

income tax rates to income before provision for income taxes. The reasons for the diff erences are as follows:

 2009 2008 

Combined federal and provincial income taxes $ 7,641 30% $ 4,169 32%

Income taxes adjusted for the eff ect of:

 Reduction for credit unions  (3,695) (14%)  (2,105) (17%)

 Other  (108) (1%)  67 1% 

   $ 3,838 15% $ 2,131 16% 

The tax eff ects of temporary diff erences that give rise to signifi cant portions of future tax and liabilities reported in 

other liabilities are as follows:

    2009  2008 

Future income tax assets:

 Allowance for impairment of loans $ 2,168 $ 2,931

 Other accrued expenses  21  69

 Premises, equipment  (72)  361

 Other  229  169 

    2,346  3,530 

Future income tax liabilities:

 Intangible assets  898  380

 Other accrued expenses  719  1,059

 Deferred revenue  1,699  2,866 

    3,316  4,305 

NET FUTURE INCOME TAX ASSET LIABILITY $ (970) $ (775) 
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22. RETIREMENT PROGRAMS

Supplemental Executive Retirement Program (SERP)

Eff ective January 1, 2006, the credit union adopted a SERP, an unregistered defi ned benefi t retirement program. 

The SERP is only available to executives selected by the Board of Directors to participate in it. The SERP supplements 

the retirement benefi ts provided under the defi ned benefi t registered pension plan by providing for the value of 

lifetime retirement benefi ts based on the executive’s highest fi ve-year average earnings and employment service 

after January 1, 2006 off set by the value of the retirement benefi ts provided, or deemed to be provided, under the 

registered pension plan.

The SERP benefi ts will be paid from the general revenue of the credit union as payments come due. Security will be 

provided for the SERP benefi ts through a letter of credit within a Retirement Compensation Arrangement Trust account 

still to be established.

The SERP uses actuarial valuation reports prepared by an independent actuary. The cost of retirement benefi ts 

earned is determined using the projected benefi t method pro-rated on employment service and using management’s 

best estimate of investment returns, salary escalation and retirement date. The excess of the net actuarial gain (or loss) 

over 10% of the accrued benefi t obligation at the beginning of the period is amortized over the expected average 

remaining service period of the active employees (“EARSL”). Past service costs are also amortized over EARSL.

The following signifi cant actuarial assumptions were used to determine the periodic pension cost:

    2009  2008 

Discount rate - January 1  7.25%  5.50%

Discount rate - December 31  6.50%  7.25%

Expected long term rate of return  6.00%  6.00%

Rate of compensation increase  3.50%  3.50%

EARSL - January 1  10.23 years  9.28 years
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The determination of the pension cost for the SERP is as follows:

Pension cost incurred  2009  2008

Current service cost $ 123 $ 181

Interest cost on accrued benefi t obligation  32  23

Actuarial losses (gains)  17  (117) 

PENSION COST INCURRED DURING YEAR, BEFORE ADJUSTMENTS $ 172 $ 87 
 

Pension costs recognized  2009  2008

Pension cost incurred $ 172 $ 87

Diff erence between actuarial gain (loss) recognized for year and 

 actual actuarial gain (loss) on accrued benefi t obligation  (17)  117 

PENSION COST RECOGNIZED DURING YEAR $ 155 $ 204 

Components of pension cost  2009  2008

Current service cost $ 123 $ 181

Interest cost on accrued benefi t obligation  32  23 

PENSION COST RECOGNIZED DURING YEAR $ 155 $ 204 

Reconciliation of accrued benefi t obligation  2009  2008

Accrued benefi t obligation, beginning of year $ 387 $ 348

Current service cost (including employee contributions)  123  181

Interest on accrued benefi t obligation  32  23

Actuarial loss (gain) during year *  17  (117)

Benefi ts paid during year  (13)  (48) 

ACCRUED BENEFIT OBLIGATION, END OF YEAR $ 546 $ 387  

* Actuarial loss predominately relates to retirement experience being other than assumed.

The SERP does not have assets. Contributions are deemed to be made as entitlements are paid.

Determination of accrued benefi t liability as at December 31  2009  2008

Accrued benefi t liability, beginning of year  $ (492) $ (336)

Plus contributions during period  13  48

Less pension cost for year  (148)  (204) 

ACCRUED BENEFIT LIABILITY, END OF YEAR $ (627) $ (492) 

Funded status as at December 31 and reconciliation 

 of accrued benefi t liability:  2009  2008

Accrued benefi t obligation, end of year $ (544) $ (386)

Fair value of plan assets, end of year  —  — 

Unfunded status  (544)  (386)

Unamortized net actuarial loss (gain)  (83)  (106) 

ACCRUED BENEFIT LIABILITY, END OF YEAR $ (627) $ (492) 
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22. RETIREMENT PROGRAMS (continued)



23. PENSION OBLIGATIONS

The credit union participates in a multi-employer pension plan through Central 1 Credit Union.

As at December 31, 2006 the plan actuary reported that the plan had assets in excess of actuarial liabilities for accrued 

pension benefi ts. However, based on plan performance to date and current market conditions, expectations are that 

plan assets at December 31, 2009 are less than actuarial liabilities. Since this is a multi-employer plan, the impact to 

the credit union is limited to increasing future contributions or modifying future benefi ts. The next actuarial review 

is scheduled for the period ending December 31, 2009.

The credit union’s total pension benefi ts expense included in the Consolidated Statement of Income is $2,832 

(2008: $2,808).

24. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On January 1, 2009, the credit union acquired 80% of the outstanding shares of a general insurance agency 

in British Columbia.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the net assets acquired at the date of acquisition:

Cash consideration paid 4,942 

Net assets 1,123

Intangible asset  1,476

Goodwill 3,566

Non-controlling interest (1,222) 

TOTAL ASSETS ACQUIRED 4,942 

25. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative instruments are purchased for interest rate risk management purpose. Instruments such as interest rate 

swaps and forward rate agreements and caps are used to adjust exposure to interest rate risk by modifying the 

repricing or maturity characteristics of loans and deposits. Equity-linked swaps are used to fi x costs on products 

which are based on movements in equity market indexes.

The following table summarizes the notional value of outstanding instruments.

                      Notional amount Net Fair Value

 Within 3 months 4 to 12 months Over 1 year Total 2009  2009 2008 

Interest rate swaps $ 25,000 $ 170,000 $ 550,000 $ 745,000 $ (3,300) $ 900

Interest rate caps  12,800  7,300  37,400  57,500  —  —

Equity linked options  400  —  3,700  4,100  300  100 

 $ 38,200 $ 177,300 $ 591,100 $ 806,600 $ (3,000) $ 1,000 
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26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal proceedings

The credit union has claims and legal proceedings brought against it that arise from usual business activities. 

The credit union contests the validity of these claims and proceedings. While the outcome of outstanding actions 

cannot be predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of management that their resolution will not have a material 

eff ect on the credit union’s fi nancial position.

Credit commitments

The following balances represent the additional credit that the credit union may be obligated to extend:

    2009  2008

Letters of credit $ 18,697 $ 26,607

Commitments to extend credit  9,005  26,985

Unadvanced loans  467,133  643,846 

   $ 494,835 $ 697,438  

Premises, computer services and equipment

The credit union has branch lease commitments for its premises extending through to 2014. 

For computer services and equipment, the credit union is committed to acquire on line data processing services 

until November, 2010. Data processing charges are based on the level of equipment and services utilized and on 

the number of credit union members.

The following table summarizes the approximate lease payments over the next 5 years:

   Premises Computer services   

    and equipment

2010  4,026 2,119

2011  4,026 576 

2012  2,833 346

2013  2,662 —

2014  2,319 —

thereafter 5,409 — 

27. OTHER INFORMATION

At December 31, 2009, outstanding loans to directors, offi  cers and employees of the credit union amounted 

to $129,973. All such loans were granted in accordance with normal lending terms.

The aggregate remuneration earned by directors of the credit union during 2009 was $411 (2008: $345).

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The credit union has included in accounts payable a donation of $629 (2008: $399) to the credit union’s charitable 

foundation, Envision Credit Union Charitable Foundation (“Foundation”). Certain directors of the credit union are 

directors of the Foundation.

78

E
N

V
IS

IO
N

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
0

9



29. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to year end, on January 1, 2010, the credit union amalgamated with Valley First Credit Union to form 

First West Credit Union.

The business combination will be accounted for using the acquisition method, with the credit union acquiring 100% 

of the net assets of Valley First Credit Union. The following table summarizes management’s preliminary estimate of 

the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The credit union is in the process 

of obtaining thirdparty valuations of the fair value of the consideration transferred and certain identifi able intangible 

assets; thus the allocation of the consideration transferred is not readily determinable.

Cash 126,551 

Loans 1,284,855 

Investments and other 40,600 

Premises and equipment 20,000 

Total assets acquired 1,472,006 

Deposits 1,336,633 

Borrowings 20,809 

Other 6,000 

Total liabilities assumed 1,363,442 

ESTIMATED NET ASSETS ACQUIRED 108,564  
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    2009  2008  2007  2006  2005

($ in thousands)   Audited  Audited  Audited  Audited  Audited 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Cash resources $ 194,069 $ 195,127 $ 170,075 $ 162,019 $ 173,158
Loans
Personal loans  2,951,517  2,813,739  2,780,218  2,426,039  2,226,873
Commercial loans  1,108,077  1,125,981  1,010,475  905,348  726,353
Accrued interest  7,008  7,391  7,611  7,127  5,904
Allowance for credit losses   (16,419)   (17,716)   (13,172)   (12,559)   (11,247) 
    4,244,252  4,124,522  3,955,207  3,487,973  3,121,040

Investments and other  376,073  351,404  295,273  244,859  215,449
Premises and equipment  52,478  48,600  47,659  51,356  44,926 
    4,672,803  4,524,526  4,298,139  3,784,188  3,381,416 

DEPOSITS
Demand   1,203,954  1,087,668  1,048,464  898,447  791,147
Term   2,377,079  2,353,032  2,146,925  1,830,601  1,648,865
Registered savings plans  573,319  574,727  525,980  516,844  504,351
Class A shares  7,554  7,422  7,523  7,720  8,085
Accrued interest and dividends  34,439  49,943  48,037  42,659  31,324 
    4,196,345  4,072,792  3,776,929  3,296,270  2,983,772

Payables and accruals  48,384  70,180  62,704  54,544  47,637
Borrowings  146,296  139,716  248,845  234,849  162,763 
Total liabilities  194,680  209,896  311,549  289,393  210,400 

Equity shares  52,368  37,694  38,624  38,772  48,308
Accumulated and other comprehensive income 6,351  12,359  (5,645)  –  –
Retained earnings  223,059  191,723  175,213  159,754  138,937 
    4,672,803   4,524,464  4,296,670  3,784,189  3,381,416 

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES
Opening balance  17,716  13,172  12,559  11,247  9,456
Less: write-offs  4,271  1,504  1,265  1,127  1,593
Plus: provision  2,974  6,048  1,878  2,440  3,384 
Closing balance   16,419  17,716   13,172   12,559   11,247

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Interest income  195,259  218,478  224,915  189,053  158,763
Interest expense  101,363  137,426  132,383  101,817  75,088 
Net interest income   93,896   81,052   92,532   87,236   83,675 

Provision for credit losses   (2,974)   (6,048)   (1,878)   (2,440)   (3,384)
Non-interest income  89,773  80,734  56,289  49,927  54,112 
Operating margin   180,695    155,738    146,943    134,723    134,403

Operating expense  143,518  135,051  122,932  107,666  103,359 
Net income before unusual item and income taxes  37,177  20,687    24,011   27,057    31,044  

Unusual item
Net income before income taxes   37,177   20,687   24,011   27,057   31,044

Income taxes  5,232  2,786  4,989  4,965  4,602 
NET INCOME   31,945    17,901    19,022    22,092   26,443 

Dividends paid to members

Financial Statistics (expressed as %)
Asset growth   3.3    5.3    13.5    11.9    11.4 
Loan growth   2.9    4.3    13.4    11.8    12.7 
Deposit growth   3.0    7.8    14.6    10.5    10.6 
Operating efficiency   79.8    87.2    83.9    80.3    77.5 
Capital ratio — Envision   13.4    11.8    11.6    12.6    13.1 
Capital ratio — Valley First   14.9    9.5    10.8    10.8    13.2 

Percent of average assets 
Net interest income   2.04    1.84    2.29    2.43    2.61 
Other income    1.95    1.83    1.39    1.39    1.69 
Operating expense   3.12    3.06    3.04    3.01    3.22 
Return on average assets   0.81    0.47    0.59    0.76    0.97 

Other Statistics
Retail branches   37    36    34    34    33
Insurance offices   30    29    28    28    26
Mutual funds under administration ($000’s)  790,128  669,880   771,641    712,772    609,205
Loans under administration ($000’s)   510,171    859,617    864,450    807,122    584,868
Book of business ($000’s)   9,533,229   9,514,922   9,183,341   8,128,752   7,113,418
Average assets ($000’s)   4,598,665   4,411,333   4,041,164   3,582,802   3,208,446

5-year overview - financial highlights
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    2009  2008  2007  2006  2005

($ in thousands)            

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Cash resources $ 194,069 $ 195,127 $ 170,075 $ 162,019 $ 173,158
Loans
Personal loans  2,951,517  2,813,739  2,780,218  2,426,039  2,226,873
Commercial loans  1,108,077  1,125,981  1,010,475  905,348  726,353
Accrued interest  7,008  7,391  7,611  7,127  5,904
Allowance for credit losses   (16,419)   (17,716)   (13,172)   (12,559)   (11,247) 
    4,244,252  4,124,522  3,955,207  3,487,973  3,121,040

Investments and other  376,073  351,404  295,273  244,859  215,449
Premises and equipment  52,478  48,600  47,659  51,356  44,926 
    4,672,803  4,524,526  4,298,139  3,784,188  3,381,416 

DEPOSITS
Demand   1,203,954  1,087,668  1,048,464  898,447  791,147
Term   2,377,079  2,353,032  2,146,925  1,830,601  1,648,865
Registered savings plans  573,319  574,727  525,980  516,844  504,351
Class A shares  7,554  7,422  7,523  7,720  8,085
Accrued interest and dividends  34,439  49,943  48,037  42,659  31,324 
    4,196,345  4,072,792  3,776,929  3,296,270  2,983,772

Payables and accruals  48,384  70,180  62,704  54,544  47,637
Borrowings  146,296  139,716  248,845  234,849  162,763 
Total liabilities  194,680  209,896  311,549  289,393  210,400 

Equity shares  52,368  37,694  38,624  38,772  48,308
Accumulated and other comprehensive income 6,351  12,359  (5,645)  –  –
Retained earnings  223,059  191,723  175,213  159,754  138,937 
    4,672,803   4,524,464  4,296,670  3,784,189  3,381,416 

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES
Opening balance  17,716  13,172  12,559  11,247  9,456
Less: write-offs  4,271  1,504  1,265  1,127  1,593
Plus: provision  2,974  6,048  1,878  2,440  3,384 
Closing balance   16,419  17,716   13,172   12,559   11,247

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Interest income  195,259  218,478  224,915  189,053  158,763
Interest expense  101,363  137,426  132,383  101,817  75,088 
Net interest income   93,896   81,052   92,532   87,236   83,675 

Provision for credit losses   (2,974)   (6,048)   (1,878)   (2,440)   (3,384)
Non-interest income  89,773  80,734  56,289  49,927  54,112 
Operating margin   180,695    155,738    146,943    134,723    134,403

Operating expense  143,518  135,051  122,932  107,666  103,359 
Net income before unusual item and income taxes  37,177  20,687    24,011   27,057    31,044  

Unusual item
Net income before income taxes   37,177   20,687   24,011   27,057   31,044

Income taxes  5,232  2,786  4,989  4,965  4,602 
NET INCOME   31,945    17,901    19,022    22,092   26,443 

Dividends paid to members

Financial Statistics (expressed as %)
Asset growth   3.3    5.3    13.5    11.9    11.4 
Loan growth   2.9    4.3    13.4    11.8    12.7 
Deposit growth   3.0    7.8    14.6    10.5    10.6 
Operating efficiency   79.8    87.2    83.9    80.3    77.5 
Capital ratio — Envision   13.4    11.8    11.6    12.6    13.1 
Capital ratio — Valley First   14.9    9.5    10.8    10.8    13.2 

Percent of average assets 
Net interest income   2.04    1.84    2.29    2.43    2.61 
Other income    1.95    1.83    1.39    1.39    1.69 
Operating expense   3.12    3.06    3.04    3.01    3.22 
Return on average assets   0.81    0.47    0.59    0.76    0.97 

Other Statistics
Retail branches   37    36    34    34    33
Insurance offices   30    29    28    28    26
Mutual funds under administration ($000’s)  790,128  669,880   771,641    712,772    609,205
Loans under administration ($000’s)   510,171    859,617    864,450    807,122    584,868
Book of business ($000’s)   9,533,229   9,514,922   9,183,341   8,128,752   7,113,418
Average assets ($000’s)   4,598,665   4,411,333   4,041,164   3,582,802   3,208,446

All data represents combined totals for Envision Credit Union and Valley First Credit Union, which merged in 2010 to become First West Credit Union.

5-year overview - financial highlights
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** Financial Planning, mutual funds and other securities are off ered through Qtrade Advisor. 

Online brokerage services are provided through Qtrade Investor. Qtrade Advisor and Qtrade Investor 

are divisions of Qtrade Securities Inc., member IIROC and CIPF. Financial planning and mutual funds 

are also off ered through Qtrade Asset Management Inc., member MFDA.

*** Ethical Funds® is a registered mark and trademark owned by Northwest & Ethical Investments L.P. 

Profi ts from the sale of mutual funds managed by Northwest & Ethical Investments L.P. fl ow back 

to the credit unions in the communities where they were sold.

NOTE:  Dollar fi gures in this annual report refer to Canadian dollars.






